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August 1st, 2007

Mr, Michael Hyatte

Securities and Exchange Commission / VCDGb
Division of Corporate Finance /61]39/

450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20549

U. 5. A.

Re.: Information furnished pursuant to Rule 12¢g3-2(b)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Dear Mr. Hyatte,
Please find enclosed the following documents:
1. Edited Annual Report 2006.
2. Quarterly Report as of March 31, 2007.
Date: filed with CONASEV on June 19, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV

3. Monthly information as of June 30, 2007 relating ADRS
holders’ share on the Capital Stock.

Date: filed with CONASEV on July 4, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV

4., Quarterly information as of June 30, 2007 relating
ADRs transactions.

Date: filed with CONASEV on July 4, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV

5. Letter related to the Board of Directors’ Meeting to
be held on July 18, 2007.

Date: filed with CONASEV on July 12, 2007.

Required by: CONASEV
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TELEFONO 265-8045 - FAX 470-8948
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T
I.Ql[;llllll'lllllllll




:__'—'—‘ .
== Cementos Lima s.A
=
6. Resclution adopted at the July 18, 2007 Board of
Directors’ Meeting concerning appointment of Outside
Auditors
Date: filed with CONASEV on July 18, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV
7. Resoclution adopted at the July 18, 2007 Board of
Directors’ Meeting concerning a cash dividend of USS
0.23 per Share of Common Stock and USS 0.0230 per
Investment Share
Date: filed with CONASEV on July 18, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV

8. Interim unaudited Financial Statements as of June 30,
2007.

Date: filed with CONASEV on July 18, 2007.
Required by: CONASEV
Very truly yours,

Irma Mavila
Head of the S

rities Department

C.C.: The Bank of New York
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PRICES OF TYPE | CEMENT
As of December 31st 2006

{in Nuevos Soles, ex-works per metric ton,
excluding packing, distribution fee and VAT)

[ Average current prices M Average constant prices
o2} o — © o
o = 7o) n @
350 r~ o wi - p-d
™ (4] — — [
b} 3] ™ m ™

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

DOMESTIC MARKET DESPATCHES PER YEAR
{thousands of tons) :

1,368
1,468
1,501
1,574
1,743, |
1,942

2,000
1,900
1,800
1,700
1,600
1,500
1,400 :
‘= 1,300 .

—

-

0 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
/'. "




TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT AT CONSTANT VALUE
As of December 31st 2006

@ o~ «t © o o [1+} o
2 P~ <t 3] ) ~ -
& R « N - a N
: ST = I -
g 3500000 QU gl =
z 300,000 A
5 250,000
0
EZOO,BOO
§150,000
£ 100,000

50,000 b | ~ 1

0 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

4

results

Sales increase, production records, cost reductions and
improved export prices drove performance in 2006

TOTAL EXPORTS
{thousands of tons} \\ i
r~ >y o [22] [=3] - L6 \ \
~t [+7e] o™~ [e's) [} ™~ Ly N
™ 1] e P~ mJ o AN
900 | \
800 W
700 i !
600
\500' I ‘ \ \\\\
400 .
300 o
20/ | DTN :
100 ' " . 5
0 2000 20012002 2003 2004 2005 2006 N . g
. . \‘\ E
. 3

——
\



Atocongo plant

‘\
W,

B T 1t




06
03
12
20
32
42

Board of Directors | Managment

National and international environment
Building excellence with a vision for the future

Investments, operations and administration
Building excellence with hard waork

Modernization
Building excellence through ingenuity

Subsidiaries and affiliates
Building excellence with solidness

Economic and financial aspects
Building excellence with transparency
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Board of Directors | Management

President
Eng. Jaime Rizo Patrén

Vice-chairman
Eng. Ricardo Rizo Patron

Directors

Eng. Juan de la Piedra

Dr. Oscar de Osma

Dr. Alfredo Gastaneta

Eng. Marcelo Rizo Patron
Dr. Julic Ramirez

Eng. Jaime Sotomayor

Lic. Alfredo Miguel Torres
Eng. Carlos Ugas

Eng. Jesus Antonio Zamora

SINDICATO DE INVERSIONES Y
ADMINISTRACION S.A. (SIA)

General Manager

Eng. Carlos Ugas
Representative of SIA in the
General Management

Administration Manager
Mr. Jorge Trelles

Corporate Development Manager
Eng. Jaime Bustamante

Project Manager
Eng. Aldo Solimano

Financial Manager
Mr. Alvaro Morales

Legal Manager
Dr. Julio Ramirez

Operations Manager
Eng. Evor Velezmoro

Technical Advisors
ARPL Tecnologia Industrial S.A.
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. UTILIDADINETA

Annual Report of the Board of Directors of
Cementos Lima S.A. for fiscal year 2006

By law and the requirements of the Articles
of Incorporation of our Company, the Balan-
ce Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement, Chan-
ges in Net Equity and Cash Flow Account
for the fiscal year ending on the 31st of
December 2006 are submitted to the Gene-

ral Meeting of Shareholders together with
this Annual Report summarising the most
important events affecting the Company’s

progress during 2006 and up to the 21st
of February 2007, the date on which they
were approved by the Company's Board of
Directors.

In addition, we submit the company’s So-
cial Responsibility Report, which describes
the most important activities in support of
the community carried out during 2006.

Cementos Lima 7
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National and international

environment

he Peruvian economy once again

performed very well in 2006,

achieving growth of 8.0%, the

highest rate since 1995, making
an accumulated growth of 26% in the last
five years. It should be said that at the be-
ginning of 2006, the market consensus fo-
recasted a growth in 2006 of less than 5%.
Similarly, the construction sector achieved
growth of 14.7%, also the highest rate since
1997. Inflation during the year, as measu-
red by the Consumer Prices Index, was only
1.14%, the lowest in Latin America and the
iowest in Peru for at least 60 years, with the
exception of the period of deflation in 2001.
Wholesale prices, according to the Whole-
sale Prices Index, rose by 1.33%.

Other outstanding achievements of the
Peruvian economy during 2006 were:

The greatest fiscal surplus in its history:
more than 1,5% of GDP.

» For the first time a fiscal surplus and cu-
rrent account surplus were achieved in the
same year.

v

The greatest trade surplus in the country’s
history: 8.85 billion dollars, with a new re-
cord for exports of 23.75 billion dollars (37%
growth compared to 2005) making this year
the fifth consecutive year of trade surplus.

A record level of Net International Reserves
at 17.28 billion dollars (22.5% higher than at
the end of 2005).

v

v

Private investment doubled the initial esti-
mates of growth {16% versus 8%).

In general, the maijority of economic indices
exceeded the levels forecasted at the begin-
ning of the year by all economic analysts.

As far as the exchange rate was concerned,
just as in 2004 the Nuevo Sol appreciated
by 6,8%.

’-m-—mnm-—



Peru’s economy achieved a growth of 8%, the highest fiscal and trade
surpluses in its history and the lowest inflation in Latin America.

Risk classification international agencies
regularly reduced Peru’s country risk, con-
firming the improvement of the Peruvian
economy, which, measured by the Emer-
ging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) published
by JP Morgan, ended the year at 118 pbs,
having reached a historic low of 117 pbs
the day before the close of the year. Thus
Peru is now one step below “investment
grade”.

Growth by sector was general, with the
exception of the fishing industry, which
contracted by about 1% because of lower
landings of Peruvian anchoveta. The cons-
truction sector had the highest growth rate
for the first time since 1997. Self-building
and the “MiVivienda” and “Techc Pro-
pio” programmes continued to drive this
growth.

The international environment continued
to favour the Peruvian economy, with the
world economy growing at a higher rate
than its historic average, with an abun-

dance of liquidity and low rates of interest.
Thus metal prices rose even further, which
resulted in a 26% improvement in Peru's
terms of trade, according to the Central Re-
serve Bank of Peru.

These achievements by the Peruvian eco-
nomy are especially noteworthy, because
they occurred during a year of country go-
vernment change coupled with a difficult
electoral process plagued with uncertainty
about the future.

During 20086, the Peruvian Congress appro-
ved a Free Trade Agreement with the Uni-
ted States of America. The discordant note
in this positive outlook was that the United
States Congress decided to postpone a
vote on the treaty, which has caused a lot
of uncertainty in the country. Considering
that the treaty has afar more positive as-
pects than negative ones for the future eco-
nomic welfare of Peru, we hope that the US
Cangress finally approves it during the first
half of 2007.

I---_----
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Investments, operations
and administration

he Board of Directors and General

Management exercised by Sin-

dicato de Inversiones y Adminis-

tracion S.A. (SIA) gave priority to
increasing the Company’s growth through
enhasing its activities in local and foreign
markets. To consclidate our position in
Peru and ensure that products are available
for export, firstly we approved an invest-
ment of approximately US$ 12¢ million to
increase the production capacity of Kiln |
from 1,200,000 t/year to 2,400,000 t/year,
thus bringing our cement production capa-
city up to 5,500,000 t.

Secondly, we began our expansion abroad
by investing in a new cement plant to be
built in Arizona, the US state with the hig-
hest rate of population growth and the
greatest increase in cement consumption
in recent years. In other words, we seek
to position ourselves in a market which is
continually growing, with the advantage
that we have already obtained the environ-
mental permits necessary, which needless

to say were very difficult to obtain. To this
we can add our well-known efficiency in the
matter of investment costs and production
process. With these conditions satisfied,
we believe that this investment abroad is
a milestone in our growth cobjective, which
will add significant value to our Company.

Based on these considerations, on the 21st
of February 2007 the Board of Directors
authorized the investment of up to US$ 40
million in the project to be carried out by
Drake Cement LLC in the USA, consisting
of the building and commissioning of a ce-
ment plant with a capacity of 600,000 tons,
in the County of Yavapai in northern Arizo-
na. The total estimated cost of the project is
US$ 140 million, with approximately US$ 50
million as risk capital and US$ 90 million
in financing over a period of ten years. Ce-
mentos Lima S.A. will have a majority stake
of at least 51% in Skanon Investments Inc.,
of Arizona USA, which will be the majori-
ty shareholder, holding not less than 73%
of Drake Cement LLC, the main minority

T--'-—--
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The increase in our production capacity and the investment abroad constitute

milestones in our Company’s growth

shareholder in which will be the Yavapai-
Apache Nation. Construction of the plant
will start in June 2007 and it should begin
operating two years later. This decision
was divulged at the appropriate time as an
“important event”.

In addition, we are continuing with the
strategy of controlling and reducing costs,
aimed at improving efficiency, reducing
down time and keeping fuels costs as low
as possible. As far as the latter is concer-
ned, although the cost of fuel has fallen
gradually after the rise in 2004, is has not
yet reached its lowest level, The total cost
of fuels during 2006 fell approximately 12%
per ton of clinker compared to 2005.

In the third quarter of 2006 we began using
natural gas from Camisea in Kiln il, with en-
couraging results. Unfortunateiy, a fault in
the new multi-use burner reduced natural
gas consumption from October onwards.
In the second quarter of 2007 we will start
using gas as the main fuel, after changes

and improvements have been made to the
burners on both kilns.

The cost reduction measures, added to
increased production of clinker and rising
domestic sales, together with improved pri-
ces for our exports, enabled us to end fiscal
year 2006 with increases of more than 31%
in operating profit and more than 36% in
the net results of the fiscal year compared
to the previous year.

PRODUCTION AND DESPATCH

IN THE DOMESTIC MARKET

2006 was a year in which we broke several
records. Total clinker production exceeded
2005's previous recerd by 2.7% to reach
2,646,393 t. Similarly, cement production,
at 2,578,837 t, was 5.6% higher than the
figure for 2005 and amounted to 44.6% of
Peru's total cement production.

These records are still more significant gi-
ven that Kiln Il suffered serious operating
problems in the month of August, which

Cementos Lima 16
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PRODUCTION BY TYPE OF PRODUCT

metric tons

(Table N2 1)
Period 2006 Period 2005
Product Type  Production Share ! Production ! Share Variation%
I 1,801 70% 1,506 62% 19.6%
I 219 8% 252 10% 133% B
Cement | BA 415 16% 555 23% -25.3% _
P 129 5% 109 4% 18.8% I
vV 15 1% 19 1% -20.4%
Total 2,579 100% 2,441 100% 5.6% r
| 2,049 77% 1,822 71% 12.5%
1 226 9% 274 11% -17.5% .
Clinker | BA 371 14% 434 17% -14.5% .
V - - 46 2% - .
Total 2,646 100% 2,576 100% 2.7% l__

were later completely overcome. In addi-
tion, local cement despatches placed consi-
derable pressure on production, having in-
creased 11.4% with respect to 2005 to reach
a new record of 1,941,701 t, with which we
at last recovered and exceeded the sales fi-
gure for 1998.

Production of cement and clinker by product
type is shown in Table 1. As can be seen ty-
pes Il and | BA cement and clinker felt as lower
quantities of these products were exported.

The demand forcementin Peru also reached
record levels, exceeding 5 million tons for
the first time {to be precise 5,081,061 t}, a
15.6% increase compared with 2005.

Following our policy of encouraging market
stability, we maintained the same price for
cement in the domestic market during 20086.




EXPORTS

For the sixth consecutive year we led Peru’s
non-metallic mining sector exports with
23.6% of total exports by this sector in 2006
{as per FOB value in United States dollars).

This sustained leadership was acknowled-
ged by the Association of Exporters (ADEX)
and the Banco de Credito del Peru, which,
in November awarded our Chairman Jaime
Rizo-Patron the “Businessman of the Year:;
Peru Exports” award for 2005. Expressed in
dollars, exports grew 1.3% compared with

2005, because contract prices for 2006 were
15% higher {compared with 2005}, which
offset a reduction in the volume exported
when priority was given to the damestic
market. The export destinations were the
United States (96.7%) and Ecuador (3.3%).

Our forecasts for 2007 already include firm
export contracts for a total of 615,000 t, of
which 300,000 t of cement will go to the
United States, 200,000 t of clinker to Pana-
ma and another 115,000 t to Ecuador.

Cementos Lima 17
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VARIATION IN PORT OPERATIONS

in metric tons

{Table N° 2}

Product As of December [ N¢ of As of December ‘ N® of % Tonnage

31+ 2006 Vessels 31 2005 Vessels Variation
Cement 630,230 19 673.752 21 6.5
Clinker 355,781 13 297,475 19.6
Coal 72,024 2 304,241 -76.3
Petcoke 35,117 1 33,671 4.6
Gypsum 37.181 2 — — —
Grains 55,444 5 60,291 6 -8.0
Total Handled 1,185,777 42 1,369,330 46 -13.4

It is worth pointing out that although firm
exports for 2007 represent a reduction in
tonnage of 28% compared with 2006, in
price terms they constitute a significant in-
crease, of the order of 37% compared with
the same year.

CONCHAN PIER

The quantity of cement and clinker loaded
increased slightly compared with 2005 (by
1.5%); however, the total tonnage han-
dled by the pier fell by 13.4% to a total of
1,185,777 t. This was due basically to the
start of natural gas consumption, in the
middle of the third quarter, the logical con-
sequence of which was a reduction in the
consumption of coal and other solid fuels,
imports of which fell drastically.

The annual variation in tonnage of each pro-
duct handled by our pier is shown in table 2.

COST AND PRODUCTIVITY
IMPROVEMENTS

The use of solid fuels mixtures such as Pe-
ruvian coal, petcoke and imported coal, as
well as the use for the first time of natural
gas, were measures applied throughout the
year in order to mitigate the effects of the
increase in international energy prices.

During 2006 we used the two kilns to pro-
duce clinker, which enabled us to make
two different types of clinker with different
fuels, thus maximizing fuel use and impro-
ving the cost of our products.

I-
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PRINCIPLES OF GOOD

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

At a meeting on the 17th of March 2003, the
Board of Directors approved the Company’s
In-house Rules of Conduct, which contain
policy guidelines and procedures adopted
by the Board of Directors concerning the
significant events and confidential or privi-
leged information that has to be reported to
the market. These regulations establish le-
gal standards of conduct for the Company’s
activities, which are conducted in accor-
dance with a coherent business mission
and vision as well with an Integrated Mana-
gement System that guarantee good per-
formance throughout the organization and
the continual development of our values of
Excellence, Responsibility, Ethics, Commit-
ment, Innovation and Legality.

During 2006 we continued to apply the
principles of good corporate governance
that protect shareholders’ rights, inclu-
ding ownership, fair treatment, full infor-
mation and effective participation in the
Company’'s general meetings.

At a meeting on the 26th of April 2006, the
Board of Directors incorporated the Audit
Committee; approved its by-laws and appo-
inted its three members, two of whom are
independent directors.

We maintained our policy of quarterly di-
vidends based on pre-established criteria
approved at a general meeting and continued
to send the Board of Directors’ Annual Report
to all shareholders, as well as the Quarterly
Reports with the interim financial statements
and summary of quarterly activities.

We have also fully respected the rights of
other stakeholders, shareholders, workers,
clients, suppliers, creditars and neighbouring
communities. During fiscal year 2006 the
Board of Directors mantained three inde-
pendent directors proposed by the private
pension funds {(AFP). The Board of Directors
has met monthly in accordance with a pre-
established schedule. The Board of Directors
has managed the Company in the interests of
all the shareholders equally, ensuring at all

?----_-
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Prioritizing the respect for the rights of all stakeholders, the Board of
Directors created the Audit Committee.

times that the Company’s interest prevails
over those of any individual shareholder or
group of shareholders.

INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Our integrated management system, im-
plemented at the beginning of 2003, has
continued to mature and has allowed us
to ensure the satisfaction of our clients.

As programed, the IMS Committee ca-
rried out six partial reviews of the system
throughout 2006. In these reviews the
Committee studied audit results, the state
of corrective and preventive actions and
the feedback to our stakeholders. It also
reviewed the results of our processes, ob-
jectives and management program and
policies. Finally, it analyzed the changes
that could affect the program, recommen-
ded improvements and other activities
planned in earlier reviews.

We carried out two surveys in April and
October to evaluate the levels of satisfac-

tion of different types of clients. The re-
sults revealed high levels of general satis-
faction among distributors, export clients
and port services clients (respectively 8,8;
8,7 and 9,0 on a scale of 1 to 10 points, in
the last survey). Among concrete and cons-
truction materials manufacturers the gene-
ral satisfaction index was relatively low (6,8
points on the same scale). We have studied
the factors influencing satisfaction in every
case, in order to take corrective action and
introduce relevant improvements.

Our ISO 9001:2000, ISPS Code (Internatio-
nal Ship and Port Facility Security), BASC-
plant and BASC-port' certificates were re-
newed on expiry. Messrs SGS and Peru’s
port authority audited our Integrated Mana-
gement System ({IMS) with this in mind in
August, whilst BASC Peru did the same in
June and October.

Furthermore, we carried out three internal
audits of the IMS in June, October and De-
cember in order to verify the effectiveness

I-

1 Business allience For Secure Commerce
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Our Integrated Management System enables us to guarantee

our client’s satisfaction through continual improvements to our
processes, thus ensuring the delivery of high-quality products
and services.

of the processes and their conformity with
the requirements of ISO 9001, 1SO 14001,
OHSAS 18001, BASC and ISPS. The results
obtained were used as a guide to extending
the scope of the IMS to cover ocupational
health and safety; as well as environmental
management.

We continued with the project to bring the
IMS into line with ISO 14001 and OHSAS
18001 standards, for which the following ac-
tivities were carried out:

Continue with the identification of hazards
and environmental aspects and the corres-
ponding evaluation of risk and impacts of
the principal processes.

Identification of significant environmental as-
pects and unacceptable risks arising from the
processes evaluated. This enabled us to esta-
blish improvement geals and a management
program to achieve them during 2007.
Planning the implementation of additional
operation controls, necessary to control envi-
ronmental aspects and risks.

* The law firm Estudio Grau was contracted
to identify legal requirements pertaining to
the environment and to occupational heal-
th and safety.

PERSONNEL

The following table shows changes in em-
ployee numbers during 2005 and 2006 {as
at the December 31¢ of each year):

PLAYROLL VARIATION

(Table N© 3)
Classification ’ 2005 | 2006
Administrative Staff 139 136
Employees 100 102
Workers 113 108
Total 348 346

This list includes personnel working in the
Atocongo plant, Conchan pier and adminis-
tration offices.

Cementos Lima 23
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Our efforts are aimed at increasing the competence
of our collaborators and contributing to the formation of
the youth.

LABOUR UNIONS

Qur policy of maintaining harmonious rela-
tions with our collaborators resulted in high
levets of performance and productivity du-
ring 2006. Collective agreements signed in
July 2005 for a period of three years, are an
important factor in this achievement.

PERSONNEL TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

At Cementos Lima S$.A., in line with our
commitment to continuous improvement,
we aim to increase the core competences
of our collaborators through regular trai-
ning program.

Within this framework, during 2006 we
provided a total of 17,036 man-hours of
training, equivalent to an average of 49.24
hours per worker. Table 4 gives details.

BREAKDOWN OF MAN-HOURS
OF TRAINING
(Table N2 4)

In-house Outside the company

2,649 m-h| 12,939 m-h| 1,448 m-h (17,036 m-h

The month of September saw the comple-
tion of the 14th Professional Training Pro-
gram, which involved 30 young professio-
nals from different disciplines. At the same
time we began the 15th Program, with the
participation of 33 recently graduated pro-
fessionals.

Furthermore, and as part of our commit-
ment to support youth formation in Peru,
we hosted visits by 5,648 students from va-
rious universities.




Training of young professional
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Modernization

Building excellence
through ingenuity
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ATOCONGO - CONCHAN CONVEYOR BELT
This project, which commenced in May
2005, made good progress during the year.
The following civil engineering and associa-
ted work was completed: the underground
tunnel 6,515 meters long, concrete dual ca-
rriageway, walkways, lighting, traffic lights
and tree planting.

The terminal buildings at the Atocongo plant
and on the jetty at Conchan are almost com-
pleted, wanting only some small details.

As far as the principal buildings, equipment
and components for the project are con-
cerned, by the 21st of February 2007 ma-
nufacture was some 60% completed whilst
assembly was 20% completed.

It is estimated that the conveyor belt will be
completed in accordance with the original
timetable, that is during the second quarter
of 2007.

CONVERSION OF ELECTROFILTERS ON
KILN I TO JET PULSE TUBULAR FILTERS

In February we successfully completed this
project, which had started in 2005, strictly
in line with the timetable and budget, whi-
ch provided the expected reduction in par-
ticle emissions into the environment from
the pre-heater.

USE OF NATURAL GAS AS FUEL

On February 15th 20086, saw the final com-
missioning of the natural gas supply pipe-
line installation. After installation, testing
and certification of the natural gas systems;
we started to use it as fuel for Kiln Il on the
1st of August, using the new multi-fuel bur-
ner. This project was also started in 2005,
although negoatiations concerning the pur-
chase and transport of the natural gas las-
ted several years.

*--—--
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The constant modernization of our installations translates into satisfied clients
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and shareholders and into protection of the environment.

Thus, Cementos Lima is helping to reduce
the production of greenhouse gases and to
improve environmental protection.

We have now submitted the “Project De-
sign Document” (PDD), for the fuel swit-
ching project from coal to natural gas; to
the United Nations for its validation as part
of the “Clean Development Mechanism”.
Once the project has been registered with
the UNFCCC {(United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change), we will
be authorized to issue the so-called “Cer-
tificates of Emission Reductions” or car-
hon bonds. These certificates or bonds are
negotiable in the international market and
represent reductions in CO2 emissions re-
sulting from environmental improvements
obtained by substituting gas for coal.

As far as the conversion of the electric gene-
rators of GEA's (Generacion Eléctrica Ato-
congo) 41.76 MW power station, from the

diesel 2 currently used as fuel to natural gas,
the main contracts have been entered into
with Indequipos S.A. and Cameron Com-
pression Systems, therefore the correspon-
ding work will be carried out during 2007.

PROJECT TO INCREASE THE INSTALLED
CAPACITY OF THE ATOCONGO PLANT

On October 25th the Board of Directors ba-
sed on the technical and financial evalua-
tion prepared by ARPL Tecnologia Indus-
trial $.A., approved the investment of up to
US$ 120,000,000 to increase the production
capacity of the Atocongo factory.

The purpose of this project is to double
the existing clinker production capacity of
Kiln | from 3,750 to 7,500t/day (1,200,000 to
2,400,000 t/fyear). This implies installing a
new raw materials grinding station, a new
heat exchanger tower with precalciner, a
new cooler and a new clinker grinding mo-
dule as well as other auxiliary equipment.
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The first series of corporate bonds to finance the increase in
the capacity of the plant was successfully placed and was more
than three times oversubscribed.

ARPL Tecnologia Industrial $.A. is responsi-
ble for the design, construction and erection
of the new plant and it should be completed
in two years. With this increase, total clinker
production capacity will be 4,800,000 t/year
and total cement grinding capacity will be
5,500,000 t/year.

The project financing will come from a
program to issue debt instrument of up
to US$ 150,000,000 authorized by a gene-
ral meeting of shareholders on May 9th
of 2006 and approved by the Peruvian Su-
pervisory Commission of Companies and
Securities(CONASEV).

On January 18th, 2007 we successfully pla-
ced the first series of corporate bonds valued
at up to 5/. 50,000,000.00 as part of the issues
program approved by CONASEV. Demand
was more than three times the offer made
by the Company and reached $/.173,000,000;
therefore, we managed to place the enti-
re offer at an annual rate of 6 1/8%. These
bonds are to be redeemed with a single pay-
ment at the end of the eighth year.

TWO NEW BAGGING MACHINES

AND ONE MULTI-SILO PROJECTS

In order to cope with growing domestic de-
mand for cement and the consequent increa-
se in production from the ptanned production
capacity increase, we have also projected the
need for increase capacity on our despatch
system. Therefore, the Board of Directors has
approved investment in the purchase and ins-
tallation of two automatic bagging machines
with a nominal capacity of 3,000 bags/hour.
The first of these machines should enter ser-
vice at the end of 2007 and the second at the
end of 2008.

For the same reason, the Board of Directors
also approved investment in a five-part silo
(mutti-silo) for 20,000 t of cement, which is
currently in the engineering development
stage. This silo will be 58 meters high and 23
meters in diameter; will allow three simulta-
neous discharges and will make an impor-
tant improvement to the efficiency and safe-
ty of the despatch process. We calculate that
this project will be completed by mid 2008.

T---—--
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Dedicated plant used for the Atocongo - Conchan
conveyor belt project.
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Subsidiaries and affiliates

Four subsidiaries remained active during
2006.

DEPOSITO ADUANERO CONCHAN S.A.
This subsidiary, of which we hold 100% of
the shares, provided services during the
year to Cargill Americas Peru 5.R.L., Cor-
poracion de Cereales S.A. and Cementos
Lima S.A.

GENERACION ELECTRICA DE

ATOCONGO S.A. (GEA)

Annual electricity production of GEA, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary, totalled 12.12
gWh, 34% higher than in 2005.

INVECO/UNICON

INVECO is a holding company in which Ce-
mentos Lima S.A, is the majority sharehol-
der, with 60% of its capital. UNICON, in turn,
is a company which provides ready-mixed
concrete and related services, in which INVE-
CO increased its shareholding from 67.88%
to 100% in December 2006 through the pur-
chase of the remaining 32.12% minority sha-
reholding at a price of US$ 8 million.

In 2006, UNICON’s production of ready-
mixed concrete increased for the fifth succe-
ssive year: the Company despatched 707,000
cubic meters, a figure 16% greater than that
for 2005 and 5% over forecast. This increa-
se was due, above all, to the construction of
housing, industrial premises, shopping cen-
ters and large stores.

The principal contracts in 2006 were the
following:

» El Platanal hydroelectric power station pro-

ject for CELEPSA: 147,000 m? contracted
and 200 m? despatched.

» The President Billinghurst Bridge in Puerto

Maldonado, for Consorcio Madre de Dios:
25,000 m? contracted and 9,000 m? delivered.

» Reducto | and ll apartment buildings for

Fujita Gumi: 16,000 m? contracted and 8,000
m? delivered.

* South and north plataforms at Jorge Cha-
vez International Airport, for Lima Airport
Partners: 14,000 m® contracted and 8,000 m?
delivered.

» Asia del Mar condominium development,

for MANTTO: 12,000 m? contracted and
delivered.
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Construction of Chilca
thermoelectric Power station.

The concrete pumping services handled
392,000 cubic meters, 14% more than in
2005.

To cover the increase in demand, the com-
pany acquired twelve concrete mixer trucks
and eight concrete pumps in 2006. UNICON
also built two 35 m3*h mobile concrete ba-
tch plants. it should be pointed out that
the concrete pumps acquired are stationa-
ry type with flexible hoses; mounted on a
truck chassis and that this is the first time
such pumps have been used in Peru. They
have proven to be satisfactory in operation
and of relatively low cost.

Industrial production of concrete pavements
has been consolidated by the use of a Wirt-
gen SP500 slipform paving machine owned
by Cementos Lima S.A. The principal jobs in
which this machine was used were:

» Atocongo — Conchan conveyor belt for Ce-
mentos Lima, along Avenues Lima and Ma-
ria Reiche, involving 27,000 m? of pavement
217 cm. thick.

» Remodeling and reshaping of Av. Arenales,
for EMAPE, involving 16,000 m? of pave-
ment 18 cm thick.

» Taxiways at Jorge Chavez International Air-
port, for Lima Airport Partners, involving
18,000 m? of pavement 38 cm thick.

UNICON supplied the mining sector with
21,000 cubic meters of shotcrete for tunnel
supports, which constitutes a record for this
product. To achieve it, the company use se-
ven of the latest generation shotcrete ma-
chines and 14 low-profile trucks strategically
distributed among the different mining ope-
rations. The main clients were: Doe Run (Co-
briza), Atacocha, Chungar and Volcan.




In its fourth year of operations, the blocks
unit sold 11 million units of different pro-
ducts (paving, blocks and bricks) valued
at 5/.4,600,000 nuevos soles. This figure is
29% higher than turnover in 2005, Paving
blocks experienced the highest growth with
177,000 m? sold in Lima and provinces {the
figure for 2005 was 121,000 m?).

Through CITEDEC (Cement and Concrete
Research Center), the company carried out
support work aimed at achieving production
cost economies and creating added value for
clients. UNICON developed high-warkability
concretes for building walls 10 cm thick for
the integral concrete structures system, whi-
ch improve finish and facilitate pouring.

The financial statements as at the 31st of
December 2006 were audited by Ernst &
Young and approved by the Board of Direc-
tors on the 17th of January 2007, giving the
following results:

» Net turnover of §/.177 million {§/.139 mi-
llion in 2005).

» Net profit of $/.9.4 million {S/.6.8 million in
2005).

» Net equity of 5/.565.7 million (§/.60 million
in 2005).

MBT UNICON S.A.

MBT UNICON S.A., a Peruvian company
whose majority shareholder is Degussa Cons-
truction Chemicals of Germany and which is
lacated in Lima, preduces and sells concrete
additives, adhesives and curing agents for
the building trade, grout for the assembly of
industrial equipment, products for repairing
concrete structures and others, as well as pro-
viding technical advice for its clients. UNICON
has 30% of the capital of MBT Unicon S.A. In
July 2006, Germany firm BASF completed
the purchase of Degussa Construction Che-
micals; the new global division is now called
Basf Construction Chemicals, which is now
the world’s largest manufacturer of chemicals
for the construction industry.
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As at the 31st of December 2006, MBT UNI-
CON S.A. had registered:
Revenues amounting to S/.17,926,000
(S/.14,636,000 in 2005).

Net profit of $/.1,197,000 {5/.1,465,000 in
2005).

Net equity of 5/.9,993,000 {$/.9,732,000 in
2005).

COMPARNIA ELECTRICA

EL PLATANAL S.A. - CELEPSA

This new subsidiary was incorporated by
public deed on the 28th of December 2005;
Cementos Lima S.A. holds 60% of its sha-
res. CELEPSA is to build and operate the El
Platanal hydroelectric power station, which
is to have an installed capacity of 220 MW,
will be located in the basin of the River Ca-
fete and will generate 1,063 GWh-year of
saleable energy.

On the 31st of October 2006, CELEPSA be-
gan construction of the 220 MW hydroelec-

tric power station, which should start pro-
duction in the fourth quarter of 2009; with an
estimated investment of US$ 200 million.

CONCESSIONS, LICENCES AND PERMITS
By means of Supreme Ruling 053-2006-EM,
dated the 12th of September 2006, the Go-
vernment approved the transfer of the per-
manent concession of electricity generation
from Cementos Lima S.A. (in whose name it
was originally granted) in favour of CELEPSA;
through an assignment agreement dated the
10th of March that year.,

In November 20086, the Ministry of Produc-
tion approved an environmental impact stu-
dy for the El Platanal plant -Cafiete station
220 kV transmission line and the 22,9 kV El
Platanal plant — Capillucas station transmis-
sion line, thus clearing the way for the con-
cession for energy transmission in favour
of Cementos Lima S.A., the company that
originally applied for the concession, whi-
ch will assign it to CELEPSA during the first
quarter of 2007.

T---
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The construction of El Platanal hydroelectric power station
reaffirms our commitment to building excellence.

Finally, between October and December
2006, the municipalities of Allauca Catahua-
si and Zuniga granted the respective cons-
truction licences for the work to start.

CONTRIBUTIONS AND CAPITAL INCREASE
The General Meeting of Shareholders held
on the 6th of March 2006 approved an in-
crease in the capital of CELEPSA through a
cash contribution from the shareholders, to
amount to US$ 60 million, in three tranches
of US$ 20 million each.

As at the 31st of December 20086, the sha-
reholders had made two disbursements:
the first in March, of US$ 20 mitlion, be-
ing 100% of the first contribution and the
second in September, of US$ 10 million,
heing 50% of the second contribution. The
remaining 50% should be handed over in
February 2007.

FINANCING

Execution of the project will require an in-
vestment of US$ 200 million, of which US$
120 million will be provided locatly by the
Banco de Credito del Peru {US$ 80 million),
which will also structure the loan, and Sco-
tiabank Peru (US$ 40 million).

Throughout the year, CELEPSA was nego-
tiating different contracts with the banks
to finance the construction of the project.
Financing contracts, using leasing schemes
should be signed in February 2007.

LAND AND EASEMENTS

During 2006 CELEPSA successfully closed
direct negotiations for the purchase and
leasing of land in the communities of Tan-
ta, Capillucas and Cachuy, in the province
of Yauyos. It also successfully concluded
direct negotiations for the purchase and
leasing of 1and in the district of Zuhiga, pro-
vince of Cafiete.
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We have started proceedings to include the El Platanal
hydroelectric power station within the United Nations
Clean Development Mechanism frame.

Furthermore, by means of Ministerial Ru- » University of Piura (design of the hydraulic

ling N2 444-2006 MEM/DM, the Government
imposed administrative easements in favo-

ur of the electricity generation permanent »

concession awarded to CELEPSA; which
are necessary for the construction of the G1
- El Platanal power station.

CONSTRUCTION OF THE G1

EL PLATANAL POWER STATION

In 2006 CELEPSA; with the support of ARPL
Tecnologia Industrial S.A., entered into va-
rious contracts with suppliers and contrac-
tors for the construction of the Et Platanal
project. The following suppliers stand out:

Ingetec (final design of the power station)

Voith-Siemens and Siemens {electrome-
chanical equipment)

Constructora JME {construction of the un-
derground installations)}

Consorcio JJSM (construction of the surfa-
ce buildings)

rmodel of the Capillucas dam)

AHL Carbono {registration of the project
with the United Nations for the issuance of
certificates of emissions reduction of CO,).

The surface building work began on the
31st of October 2006 and marked the com-
mencement of the construction schedule
for G1 - El Platanal power station. The un-
derground installations were started on the
1st of December and establish the project’s
critical path.

As at the 31st of December 2006, CELEPSA
had invested US$ 20.2 million in the work,
of which US$ 13.7 million were advance
payments and US$ 6.5 million covered
work done and the acquisition of land. Of
the total amount, US$ 11.2 million was pro-
vided by the Banco de Credito and US$ 9.0
million was financed from the company’s
own capital.




CARBON BONDS

In October 2006 the consultant hired by CE-
LEPSA started to compile the information
necessary to draw up the PDD {Project De-
sign Document}, which will be used for va-
lidating and registering the project as part
of the United Nations’ Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM).

This registration will enable future trading
in Certificates of Emission Reduction {CERs)
or carbon credits, when the G1 - El Platanal
power station starts commercial operation.

OTHER MATTERS OF INTEREST

In August 2006 the Government promulga-
ted Law N° 28876, which widened the sco-
pe of the regime for anticipated recovery
of the value added tax by hydroelectric ge-
nerating companies. It is expected that the
executive regulations to this act will be pro-
mulgated in the first quarter of 2007; as this
will enable CELEPSA to sign the respective
contract investment.

In December 2006, the Government promul-
gated Supreme Decree N2 211-2006-EF, which
reduced to 0% the CIF ad valorem duty on a
sub-set of the national customs tariffs, among
them capital equipment for use in hydroelec-
tric power stations.
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Economic and

financial aspects

The balance sheet and profit and loss state-
ments as at the 31st of December 2008, which
have been submitted to the General Meeting
for approval, show a turnover of S/750 mi-
ilion {(14% greater than in 2005} and net profit
of $/.137 miilion {39% higher than in 2005).

The General Meeting of Shareholders and,
at its behest, the Board of Directors took the
decisions summarized below throughout
fiscal year 2006, with the respective effects
on the Company’s equity.

25" JANUARY: The Board of Directors
agreed to pay dividends of US$ 0.13 per or-
dinary share and US$ 0.013 per investment
share, on account of retained profits from
fiscal year 20065.

14t MARCH: The Annual General Meeting
elected the Board of Directors for the pe-
riod 2006-2008, which will be made up by
the foliowing people:

CHAIRMAN
Eng. Jaime Rizo Patrén

VICE CHAIRMAN
Eng. Ricardo Rizo Patrdn

DIRECTOR
Dr. Alfredo Gastafieta

DIRECTOR
Eng. Marcelo Rizo Patron

DIRECTOR
Eng. Juan de la Piedra

DIRECTOR
Eng. Carlos Ugas

DIRECTOR
Eng. Jaime Sotomayor

DIRECTOR
Dr. Julio Ramirez

DIRECTOR
Lic. Alfredo Torres




v

v

DIRECTOR
Ing. Jesus Antonio Zamora

DIRECTOR
Dr. Oscar de Osma

26" APRIL: The Board of Directors agreed to
pay dividends of US$ 0.14 per ordinary share
and US$ 0.014 per investment share, on ac-
count of interim profits for fiscal year 20086,

9 MAY: An Extraordinary General Mee-
ting of Shareholders approved a proposal
entitled Cementos Lima S.A. First Program
of Corporate Bonds and Short Term Instru-
ments Issue valued at up to US$ 150 million.
The first issue of up to $/.50 million, entit-
led Cementos Lima Corporate Bonds - First
Issue of the First Program took place succe-
ssfully an the 18th of January 2007.

19* JULY: The Board of Directors agreed to
pay dividends of US$ 0.13 per ordinary share
and US$ 0.013 per investment share, on ac-
count of interim profits for fiscal year 2006.

» 250 OCTOBER: The Board of Directors
agreed to pay dividends of US$ 0.14 per or-
dinary share and US$ 0.014 per investment
share, on account of interim profits for fis-
cal year 2006.

By means of an agreement by the Board of
Directors taken at a meeting on the 24th of
January 2007, and taking effect on the 1st
of January 2006, we made a change in our
accounting practices by which investments
in subsidiaries are now recorded using the
equity method and not the cost method, as
was the case until fiscal year 2005.

In other words, we now recognize the
Company’s share in the profit ar loss of sub-
sidiaries in the results of the period in whi-
ch they occur. Applying IAS 8 "Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors” {revised in 2003) we have made
this change retroactive to January 1st 2005
and recorded earnings arising from our sha-
reholding in subsidiaries of 5/. 2,137,000 in-
creasing the profit made in that year by the
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The Board of Directors approved a change in our accounting
practices by which investments in subsidiaries are now
registered using the equity method.

same amount. Also, the accumulated loss
of S/, 628,000 as at the 31st of December
2004 was recorded in the initial balance of
accumulated profits as at that date.

During 2006 there were no movements that
affected capital accounts and investment
shares, therefore the figures in nuevos so-
les at the close of the year were as follows:

AS AT THE 315" DECEMBER 2006

Capital 369,266,290
Capital adjustment 23,901,879
Investment shares 47,701,066
Adjustment to investment shares 3,087,536
Legal reserve 73,853,258
Reserve to be capitalised 4
Accumulated results 223,114173
Results of the fiscal year 136,966,652
Total equity 877,890,818

Of the Company’s equity as at the 31st of De-
cember 2006, 88.56% continued to belong to
the ordinary shareholders while 11.44% was
held by the investment shareholders.

At present we have a number of pending
taxation, legal and labour proceedings re-
lating to the Company’s operations. In the
opinion of management and the legal advi-
sors, the final results will not mean signifi-
cant expenditure for the Company; therefo-
re, as at the 31st of December 2006 we have
not made any provisions relating to these
proceedings.

The firm of Medina, Zaldivar, Paredes &
Asociados Sociedad Civil {a member of
Ernst & Young} was responsible for the
external audit during 2006. The opinion
on the balance sheet, profit and loss state-
ment, changes in net equity and cash flow
as at the 31st of December 2006, which for-
ms part of this Annual Report, was given
without reservations,




ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT AND
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

The General Management of Cementos
Lima S.A. continued in the hands of Sin-
dicato de Inversiones y Administracion
S.A., under a contract renewed until the
12th of April 2012, in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Incorporation dated
the 28th of December 1967 and by a man-
date given by the General Meeting of Sha-
reholders on the 28th of December 1981,

ARPL Teenologia Industrial S.A. provides us
with valuable technical advice under a con-
tract that is automatically renewable every
two years, and which remains in force until
the 31st of December 2007.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the
valuable contributions of both companies
during 2006.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors thanks the Company’s employees
and collaborators for their decisive participation in the

Company’s record achievements.
pany

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

U [74
Eng. Jaime Rizo Patrén
Chairman

Lima, 21st February 2007

Eng. Carlos Ugés
Director-General Manager

Cementos Lima 47




Financial Statements

5 O Report of Independent Auditors
5 2 Financial Statements

Balance Sheet

Statement of Income

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Staternent of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements




4

Financial Statements as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, together with the Report
of independent Auditors




Annual Report 2006

Report of
Independent Auditors

To the Shareholders of Cementos Lima S.A.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Cementos Lima S.A. {a Peruvian com-
pany, subsidiary of Sindicato de Inversiones y Administracidon S.A.} as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows
for the years then ended, as well as the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatary notes.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Peru. This responsibility includes: de-
signing, implementing and maintaining relevant internal control for the preparation and fair presen-
tation of financial statements, in order to be free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making reasonable accounting
estimates according to the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in conformity with generally accepted auditing standards in Peru. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial staternents. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whe-
ther due to fraud or error. In making this risk assessment, the auditor considers the relevant in-
ternal control of the Company in the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement,
in order to design audit procedures according to the circumstances, but not for the purpose of




expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
the evaluation of the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of ac-
counting estimates made by management, as well as the evaluation of the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

The financial statements of Cementos Lima S.A. have been prepared to comply with Peruvian legal
requirements regarding the presentation of financial information, and recognize the investments
in affiliates on a equity method value {see Note 8} and not on a consolidated basis. Therefore, the
financial statements referred to above should be read together with the consolidated financial sta-
tements of the Company and its subsidiaries, presented separately.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of Cementos Lima S.A. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in Peru.

Lima, Peru,
January 8, 2007

Countersigned by,

M .

Marco Antonio Zaldivar
C.P.C. Register No.12477
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2006 2005
Assets S/{000) S/A000)
Current assets
Cash and banks 27,517 31,006
Trade accounts receivable, net 12,071 30,863
Accounts receivable from Principal and subsidiaries 25 6,956 3,424
Other accounts receivable, net 6 10,453 6,499
Inventories 7 125,870 152,138
Current portion of deferred stripping costs 2(h) 26,954 25,437
Prepaid taxes and expenses 7,067 9,465
Total current assets 216,888 258,832
Long-term other accounts receivable, net 6 6,665 10,495
Long-term inventories 7 32,860 31,996
Deferred stripping costs 2{h} 51,688 36,425
Investments, net 8 97,152 30,151
Property, plant and equipment, net 9 603,994 630,423
Goodwill 2(0) 9,745 9,745
Other assets, net 10 49,907 45,171
Total assets 1,068,899 1,053,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets.

T------




Note 2006 2005
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity, net $/{000) $/(000)
Current liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafis 11 63,947 106,024
Trade accounts payable 12 27,758 36,726
Accounts payable to Principal and subsidiaries 25 14,086 10,622
Income tax and worker's profit sharing 24,195 16,326
Other current liabilities 13 22,841 18,230
Current portion of long-term debt 14 - 5,147
Total current liabilities B 152,827 192,975
Deferred liahility from income tax and
workers’ profit sharing 15 38,181 45,541
Total liabilities 191,008 238,516
Contingencies 26 - -
Shareholders’ equity, net 16
Capital stock 393,168 393,168
Investment shares 50,789 50,789
Legal reserve 73,853 73,853
Retained earnings 360,081 296,912
Total shareholders’ equity, net 877,891 814,722
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity, net 1,068,899 1,053,238

*--_--_--
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A.
STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2006 2005 I
S/000) S/toon) !
Net sales ' 18 749,801 657,035 l ‘
Operating costs 19 {420,755) {386,024)
]
Gross margin 329,046 271,01 :
Other operating expenses I
Administrative expenses 20 {96,428) {88,394) .
Selling expenses 21 (27,426) {23,266) I i
Total operating expenses (123,854) {111,660) ‘
Operating income 205,192 159,351 I |
Other income {expenses}
Share in affiliate companies 8 6,049 2,137 I
Financial income 23 2,167 1,273
Financial expenses 24 {6,760) (4,811) I
Gain {loss) from exchange difference 7,819 (4,478)
Other income {expenses), net (1,758} 3,395
: 1
: Total other income (expenses}, net 7,517 (2,484)
i
=
I




Note 2006 2005
S/000) S/000)

Income before workers’ profit sharing and income tax 212,709 156,867
Workers’ profit sharing 15 (20,471) {15,199}
Income tax 15 (55,271) (40,875}
Net income 136,967 100,793
Weighted average number of outstanding shares
{in thousands of units}
Common shares 27 36,927 36,927
Investment shares 27 47,701 47,701
Basic and diluted earnings per share {in Peruvian Nuevos Soles)
Common shares 27 3.28 2.42
Investment shares 27 0.33 0.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A,
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005

Number of shares Capital I |
Common Investment stock :
$/i000)

Balance as of January 1%, 2005 36,926,629 47,701,066 393,168

Cash dividends, Note 16{d) - - -
Prescribed dividends - - .

- | o

Legal reserve appropriation, Note 16(c) - - - I—
Net income - . _
Balance as of December 31, 2005 36,926,629 47,701,066 393,168 l:
Cash dividends, Note 16(d) - - - I—
Prescribed dividends - - -

Legal reserve appropriation, Note 16(c) - - -

Net income - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2006 36,926,629 47,701,066 393,168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Investment Legal Retained
shares reserve eamings Total
S/ioo0) S/{o00) S/(000) SA009)
50,789 73.853 267,410 785,220
_' - - (71.349) {71,349)
- 58 - 58
_I - (58) 58 -
- - 100,793 100,793
I 50,789 73,853 296,912 814,722
_I - - {73,834) {73,834)
- 36 - 36
N - (36) 36 -
I - - 136,967 136,967
I 50,789 73,853 360,081 877,891
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005
5/t000) S/{000)
Operating activities
Coilection from customers, included value added tax 901,989 777,675
Payment to suppliers {442,492) {463,310)
Payment of taxes (88,712) {72,887)
Payment to employees (65,713) (48,317)
Payment of interests {6,895) {3,010)
Net cash provided by operating activities 298,177 190,151
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (67,358) {96,819)
Payment due to purchase of affiliate’s investments (60,952) {6)
Purchase of deferred quarries cost (46,634) {42,758)
Purchase of other assets {5,826) {6,032)
Net cash used in investing activities {180,770} {145,615)
Financing activities
Payments of dividends (73,798) {(71,280)
Increase (decrease) of bank loans and overdrafts, net (42,077) 60,209
Amortization of long-term debts {5,021) {9.819)
Net cash used in financing activities (120,896) {20,890)

’-_-_---




2006 2005

5/{000) S/0o0)
Net increase {decrease) of cash and cash equivalents (3,489} 23,646
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 31,006 7,360
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 27,517 31,006
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Net income 136,967 100,793
Add (deduct)
Depreciation 89,832 92,272
Application of Deferred stripping cost 29,854 23,421
Amortization 3,906 4,173
Net cost of property, plant and equipment retired 2,047 924
Provision of impairment of assets 1,783 1,663
Deferred workers’ profit sharing and income tax {8,171} {9,571)
Gain (loss) from exchange difference (7,819) 4,478
Share in affitiate companies {6,049} {2,137)
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005 I

S/{000} S/(000)
Net changes in assets and liability accounts
Decrease (increase) of operating assets l
Trade accounts receivable 18,792 {14,584)
Accounts receivable from Principal and subsidiaries {3,632} 8,270 I |
Other accounts receivable (123) 3,659 !
Inventories 25,404 (18,265} :
Prepaid taxes and expenses 2,398 {3,532) l
Increase {decrease} of operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable {8,968) {(2,886)
Accounts payable to Principal and subsidiaries 3,564 7,110
Income tax and worker's profit sharing 7,869 {583}
Other current liabilities 10,423 {4,954}
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities 298,177 190,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CEMENTOS LIMA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

1. BUSINESS ACTIVITY

Cementos Lima S.A. (hereafter “the Company”} was incorporated in December 1967. The
Company is a subsidiary of Sindicato de Inversiones y Administracién S.A. (hereafter “the Prin-
cipal”), which owns 68.03 percent of its capital stock. The Company’s legal address is Av. Ato-
congo 2440, Villa Maria del Triunfo, Lima, Peru.

The Company’s main activity is the production and commercialization of all types of cements
and clinker for sale in the domestic and foreign markets. To that effect, the Company has a
plant located in the department of Lima with a production capacity of 3.6 millions of tons of
clinker and approximately 4.5 millions of tons of cement. The Board of Directors’ meeting held
on October 28, 2006 agreed to execute the expansion of the production capacity of the Atocon-
go plant, by expanding Kiln |. This capacity expansion will enable the Company to produce
4.8 and 5.5 millions of tons per year of clinker and Cement mill, respectively. The estimated
investment is US$120 millions and the project is expected to be completed in 2008.

The Company is also entitled to invest in other companies engaged in similar activities and/
or in activities that contribute to accomplishing, developing and supplementing its corporate
objectives, both in Perd and abroad. The Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting held
on November 4, 2005, approved to extend the Company’s business line, aimed at investing in
other companies engaged in electric power activities. In this regard, an Investment Framewaork
Agreement was approved to be entered into by and between the Company, Cemento Andino
S.A. and Corporacion Aceros Arequipa S.A., in order to create Compania Eléctrica El Platanal
S.A. - CELEPSA, the company that will operate electric power generating concession G-1 £l Pla-
tanal. The total estimated investment therein is LUS$210 millions to be funded with a bank loan
and the contribution of founder shareholders, Cementos Lima S.A., Cemento Andino S.A. and

-
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As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

Corporacién Aceros Arequipa S.A., based on a 60, 30 and 10 percent share, respectively. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company's contribution amounts to US$18 millions, (see Note 8).

The Genera! Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 9, 2008, approved the proposal for the “First
Issue of Debt Instruments Program”, up to a maximum amount of US$150 millions. The first
issuance will be made in January 2007, month in which the First Issuance of The First Program
of Cementos Lima’s Corporate Bonds will offer for up to S/50 millions.

The Company’s General Management is exercised by the Principal, as per public deed dated
December 28, 1967, for renewable terms that will not exceed five years each. The current
five-year term expires in April 2007. In accordance with the current Management Agreement,
The Principal receives, as its sole compensation, annual fees eguivalent to 10 percent of the
Company’s net income before income tax and workers’ profit sharing.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2005 and for the year then ended were approved
by the General Meeting of Shareholders held on March 14, 2006. The financial statements co-
rresponding to the year 2006 will be submitted for the Shareholders’ approval within the term
established by law. In the opinion of Company’s Management, the accompanying financial
statements will be approved without modifications at the Board of Directors and General Sha-
rehalders’ meetings that will be held during the first quarter of the year 2007.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the Company's individual activity without incfu-
ding the effects of the consolidation of these financial statements with those of its Subsidiaries.
The Company’s consoiidated financial statements show the following amounts:




2006 2005

S/{000} S/{000)

Total assets 1,198,678 1,143,172
Total liabilities 261,447 296,579
Minority interest 59,204 33,381
Shareholders’ equity 878,025 813,205
Total sales 864,059 739,398
Operating income 225,964 166,945
Net income 136,967 100,793

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES
The most significant accounting principles and practices applied by the Company to record its
operations and prepare its financial statements are as follows:

{a) Basis of presentation -

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the related legal regulations on the
matter and accounting principles generally accepted in Peru, which include the International
Accounting Standards (IAS} approved by the Peruvian Accounting Standards Board (IASC).
As of December 31, 2008, this board has approved to use the IAS 1 to 41 and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1 to 6 made official by the Peruvian Accounting Standard
Board (CNC by its Spanish Acronym). The significant accounting principles used in the prepa-
ration of the Company’s financial statements includes International Accounting Standards (IAS
1, 10, 16, 17, 24, 27, 28, 32, 33 y 39) in force in Peru since January 1, 2006, the adoption of the
revised IAS, had not a material effect in the Company’s Financial Statements.
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{b) Use of estimates and assumptions -

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles genera-
lly accepted in Peru requires Management to make estimates and assumptions to determine
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements, as well revenue and expense amaunts reported for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Actual amounts that may result in the future could
differ from said estimated amounts.

The most significant estimates in the accompanying financial statements are referred to the
allowance for doubtful accounts, the useful life and recovery value of the property, machinery
and equipment, the evaluation of impairment of long-lived assets, the evaluation of impair-
ment value of the goodwill for Lar Carbon S.A.'s purchase, the deferred liability from income
tax and workers’ profit and the provision for quarries closing costs.

(c) Foreign currency transactions -

Transactions occurring in a foreign currency are recorded in local Peruvian currency using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange gains and losses resulting from differen-
ces between the exchange rate at year-end and the exchange rate in which transactions were
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of income in the period in which they arise.

{d) Financial assets and liabilities -
Financial assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheets correspond to cash and bank, ac-
counts receivable, bank loans, accounts payable and long-term debt.

’------




Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to
net the recognized amounts and Management intends either to settle therm on a net basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(e} Cash and bank -
Cash presented in the cash flow account consists of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
on the balance sheet with an original maturity of up to three months.

{(f} Accounts receivable -

Accounts receivable are stated at their nominal value. A provision for impairment is made
when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original terms of the invoice.

(g) Inventories -

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is defi-
ned as the estimated sales price obtainable in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
completion costs and selling and distribution expenses. Cost is determined using the average
method, except for inventories in transit, which are valued at their specific acquisition cost. The
cost of products in process and finished products include an allocation of the fixed and variable
costs used in the production,

(h) Deferred stripping costs -

The Company is deferring the stripping costs related to expansion of the Atecongo, Cristina
and Pucara mining area. For the purpose of determining the amount of the deferred stripping
cost, the Company’s management calculates a cost per ton coefficient which results by dividing

Cementos Lima 65



Annual Report 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

the total amount of the overburden to be removed by the total tons of limestone expected to be
extracted during the useful life of the quarry. Additional costs are deferred or amortized when
the actual stripping amount is greater or smaller, respectively, than the estimated amount using
the aforementioned cosfficient. According to management’s estimations, part of the deferred
preparation cost is associate to limestone which will be entered into the production process in
2007, and therefore, is presented as current assets.

{i) Investments -

Untii Decernber 31, 2005 stock investments in affiliated companies are recorded at cost. Cash
dividends are credited to income when approved. Annually, the Company compares the ca-
rrying value of its investments with their equity value and establishes impairment provisions
as necessary when there is a permanent deterioration of its investments. From January 1, 2006
stock investments in affiliated companies are recorded in agreement with the equity method,
recognizing the share of the company in the subsidiaries’ gains or losses in the period results
in which they take place.

Effective January 1, 2006, the investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the equity me-
thod, recognizing the Company's proportionate share in the results of the subsidiaries in the
period to which they relate. In application of NIC 8 “Accounting Policies, estimation and errors
changes” (reviewed in 2003}, the Company has given retroactive effect as of January 1, 2005
the related accounting principle change, recording a gain by share in affiliate companies of
$/2,137,000, increasing the current year earning in the same amount; as well as accumulated
loss of §/628,000 to December 31, 2004 was recorded in the initial balance of the accumutated
earnings to that date.

'
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{i) Property, plant and equipment -

The property, plant and equipment item is presented at cost, net of accumulated depreciation,
adjusted by voluntary revaluations recorded in previous years and based on the assessments
and appraisals made by independent experts. Maintenance and minor repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Expenditures, which will result in future economic benefits, beyond origi-
nally assessed performance standards, are capitalized.

Machinery costs include interest on loans obtained for financing the plant expansion that
accrued during the construction phase of the expansion project.

The cost of property, plant and equipment also includes certain replacement parts directly
related to specific assets.

Depreciation is accounted for using the straight-line method and the following estimated
useful lives:

Years
Buildings and camps 33
Roads 33
Other constructions 10
Machinery 5and 10
Vehicles 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Other equipments 4 and 10

-
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The useful lives assigned and method of depreciation chosen by the Company is reviewed pe-
riodically to assure that they are consistent with economic benefit and life expectations for use
of property, plant and equipment items.

Work in progress includes disbursements for construction of assets and other direct costs.
Work in progress is not depreciated until such balances are transferred to fixed assets and
placed in operation.

When property, plant and equipment are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated deprecia-
tion are eliminated and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the state-
ments of income.

(k) Joint venture agreements -

The Company has entered into a joint venture agreement for the purpose of developing studies
related to an electricity generation project, see Note 10{(a). The costs associated with the joint
venture are recognized following the proportional participation method and are shown under
other assets, net, on the balance sheet. On December 28, 2005, “Compania Eléctrica El Piatanal
S.A. (CELEPSA)} was incarporated being the Company its majority shareholder. As of said date,
CELEPSA is in charge of the development and operation of the electrical generation concession
G-1 El Platanal.

(I} Mining concessions -

Significant disbursements related to the acquisition of mining concessions are capitalized and
amortized over a period of ten years and are presented under the caption “Other assets, net” in
the balance sheets. Amounts previously capitalized are charged to expense in the year in which
the Company determines that the investment made in the mining concession is recoverable.
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{m) Impairment of long lived assets -

The Company undertakes an evaluation of impairment of assets whenever events or circums-
tances indicate that the book value of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is calculated as the amount by which the book value of an asset exceeds the higher of its net
selling price or value in use. The net selling price is the amount at which the asset can be sold
in a free market transaction; value in use is generally computed as the present value of the sum
of estimated future cash flows expected from continual use of the asset and its disposal at the
end of its useful life. An impairment loss recognized in previcus years is reversed if changes
occur in the estimates used in determining the impairment loss.

{n) Revenue recognition -

Sales are recognized when all the risks and benefits inherent in ownership have been trans-
ferred, it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company, and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recognized on a timely basis using the effective rate on the underlying
asset.

{0} Recognition of costs and expenses -

The cost of sales corresponding to the production cost of cement and clinker that the Company
sells is recorded at the time the products are delivered, simultaneously with the recognition of
revenue on the sale.

Interest expense on loans is recorded on an accrual basis. Interest expense on loans obtai-
ned specifically for the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
capitalization of interest commences when activities to build the property are in progress

*--—----
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and interest costs are being incurred. The capitalization of interest ceases at the time assets
are ready to be placed in use.

Other costs and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, disregarding the moment they
are paid, and are recorded in the periods to which they relate.

{p) Income tax and workers’ profit sharing -

The current portion of income tax and workers’ profit sharing are calculated and recorded in
accordance with prevailing legal regulations. Additionally, under the liability method, the Com-
pany recognizes the effect of temporary differences between book and tax basis to the extend
that such differences result in a deferred tax liability. A deferred asset will only be recognized
as long as its realization is probable.

(q} Accruals -

An accrual is only recognized when the Company has a current obligation {legal o implicit) as a
result of past events, it is probable to require resources of the Company to settle the obligation,
and the related amount can be reasonably estimated. Accruals are revised periodically and are
adjusted to reflect the best estimate at the date of the balance sheets.

(r) Quarry closing costs -

Up to December 31st, 2005, the Company recorded the amount of related obligatien re-
garding quarry closing at the moment limestone reserves are extinguished. On January
1st, 2006, the Company records said liability when a legal obligation exists, without ha-
ving completely extinguished the limestone reserves. At the moment of the initial liability
record for said obligation, which is presented at fair value, the Company capitalizes the
amount through an increase of book’s value of long-length assets. Subsequently, liabilities

F----——-



are increased in each period to show the interest cost taken in consideration in the initial
measurement of fair value, and furthermore, the capitalized cost is depreciated and/or
amortized on the basis of the useful life of the related asset. When settling liability, Com-
pany will record any resulting gain or loss. The changes made to fair value of obligation or
to the useful life of related assets arising from the review of the initial estimates, should be
recognized through an increase or decrease of the bock’s value of the obligation and rela-
ted long-length asset. As a result of this, in the year 2006, the Company increased the cost
of “other assets, net” caption in $/2,817,000 and recognize a liability for the same amount
which is presented in the “other accounts payable” in the balance sheet.

(s) Contingencies -

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the financial statements when it is probable that future
events will confirm them, as long as their amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent
liahilities deemed as possible are only disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements; however, they are disclosed in
notes to the financial statements when it is probable that they will be realized.

{t} Goodwill -

On February 28, 2003, a merger process by which the Company absorbed its subsidiary Lar Carbon
S.A. was approved. The mergers effective date was March 1st, 2003. The goodwill corresponds
to the difference between Lar Carbon S.A. shares’ acquisition cost and the fair value of the acquired
assets and liabilities at the moment of the merger.

‘-----—-
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Annually, impairment tests are taken to goodwill to determine if the book’s value is totally reco-
verable. If the book's value is greater than its recoverable value it records an accrual. Goodwill
is assigned to the generating units of cash in order to tests its impairment value.

In agreement with NIIF 3, from January 1°, 2005, the Group stopped to amortize the goodwill
and accumulated amonrization to December 31, 2004 has been written off with the decrease in
the cost of the goodwill.

{u) Earnings per share -

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net income attri-
butable to common and investment shares by the weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares as of the date of the balance sheet. See Note 27,

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company does not have any financial instrument with
dilutive effect, for that reason, basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.

{v) Comparison of the financial statements -
Reclassifications
The reclassifications made in the Comparative Financial Statements as of December 31, 2006

were as follows:

« The cost of limestone situated in the Pucard’s stripping cost amount to 5/31,996,000 which
was presented as part of the inventories, has been reclassified at a long-term.
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» The deferred stripping cost amount to 5/ 25,437,000, which was presented as a non current
asset, has been reclassified as a current asset.

* The disbursements of the year 2005 related to deferred stripping cost amount to $/42,758,000
which was presented as an operational activities, is currently presented as investment activities
in the statements of cash flows.

Pro-forma Financial Statements
+ As explained in (i}, applying IAS B, As of January 1st, 2005 the Company has given the change
of the accounting principle related to the acknowledge of equity sharing in the Statement of
Income of year 2005 a retroactive effect, recording a gain per share in affiliates of $/2,137,000
{accrual lost of $/628,000 as of December 31, 2004 racorded with the initial balance of the accu-
mulated results as of said date).

{w} New International Financial Reporting Standards-

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments - Disclosures - Said standard has as an objective to provide dis-
closures in the notes of the Financial Statements that enable users to evaluate the significance
of Financial Instruments in the Company’s Financial Position and Performance, to understand
the nature and extenston of the risks faced by Company due to the carrying out of financial ins-
truments and how Company’s Management manage said risks. This Standard has international
relevance for the annual periods that began after January 1, 2007, and replace the require disclo-
sures by the IAS 32 about financial instruments. Its use in Peru has not been approved yet.
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3. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency operations are made at free market exchange rates published by the *Super-
intendencia de Banca y Seguros and AFP's”. As of December 31, 20086, the weighted average
free market exchange rates for transactions in U.S. Dollars was 5/3.194 for buying and $/3.197
for selling (5/3.429 for buying and $/3.431 for selling as of December 31, 2005).

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s assets and liabilities in foreign currency
were as follows:

2006 2005
US$(000) US$(000)

Assets
Cash and banks 3,856 207
Trade accounts receivable, net 472 6,391
Accounts receivable from Principal and subsidiaries 2,161 554
Other accounts receivables, net {(includes non-current portion) 4,518 4,408
Prepaid expenses 86 80
11,093 11,640
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2006 2005
USS(000) US$(00a)

Liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts 20,002 30,901
Trade accounts payable 3,974 9,227
Other current liabilities 3,902 2,403
Long-term debts - 1,500
27,878 44,031
Net liability position 16,785 32,391

The Company’s management has decided to accept the exchange risk of this position and has
not carried out operations with derivative products for hedging purposes.

4. CASH AND BANKS
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005

$/(000) S/000)

Cash 762 807
Current accounts {a} 5,712 2,649
Time deposits {b) 21,043 27,650
27,517 31,006
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{a) The Company maintains its current bank accounts with different domestic banks both in
Peruvian currency and in U.S. Dollars. Deposits in these current accounts are freely available
and do not accrue interest.

(b) As of December 31, 20086, the balance corresponds to time deposits maintained with domes-
tic banks in Peruvian currency. These deposits accrue annual interest rates ranging between
4.40 {in Peruvian nuevos soles} and 4.39 percent {in U.5.Dollars).

5. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005
S/000) $/(000)
Invoices receivable
Third parties 11,483 15,680
Subsidiary, Note 25(b) 684 15,233
12,167 30,913
Bills of exchange receivable from third parties 633 679
12,800 31,592
Less
Provision for doubtful accounts {729) (729}
12,071 30,863
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Trade accounts receivable to third parties are stated in Peruvian Nuevos Soles, except for those
related to export sales, which are stated in U.S. Dollars, and do not have trade accounts receiva-
ble as of December 31, 2006 (5/7,600,000 as of December 31, 2005}). Accounts receivable have
current maturities and do not accrue interest.

In Management’s opinion, the provision for doubtful accounts receivable is sufficient conside-
ring the assessed risks as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

6. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005
5/{000) S5/(000)
Third parties loans (a) 9,973 13,189
Claims to Tax Administration 1,616 -
Claims to third parties 835 546
Personnel accounts receivable 570 682
Interest receivable 175 1
Other accounts receivable 4,083 2,700
17,252 17,128

Less
Provision for doubtful accounts {134) (134}
17,118 16,994
Current portion 10,453 6,499
Non current portion 6,665 10,495
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(a) As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, this amount includes primarily the account receivable to
Minera San Martin S.A., related to the sale of certain machinery and granted loans. The loans
were granted on the basis of the mining concession development and operation contract in
the quarries of Atocongo, in return of which Minera San Martin S.A. is committed to provide
services for exploitation and limestone transport from the Company's quarries to its processing
plant. The loan has an established interest rate of 7.35 percent and the last payment on the loan
is due on December 31, 2010.

7. INVENTORIES
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005

S/(000) S/(000)

Finished products 3,296 3,732

Work in process (a} 67,886 78,594

Raw and ancillary materials (b) 9,973 33,986

Containers and packaging 7,415 4,344

Spare parts, materials and supplies {c) 61,519 57,875

Inventories in transit 8,641 5,603

158,730 184,134
g

S Non current portion {a) 32,860 31,996
5

%% Current portion 125,870 152,138
5
E
2
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(a) Products in process include clinker in production and limestone extracted from the
Company’s mines to be used in the production process. As of December 31, 2006 this
balance includes limestone of high grade extracted in the Pucara mine by an amount of
$/32,860,000 that, according to management estimations will be used in the producti-
ve process in the medium term and, therefore is presented as a non current existence
(5/31,996,000 as of December 31, 2005).

{b) Raw and ancillary materials include gypsum, silica, iron ore and coal, among others, which
will be used in the production process.

{¢} In Management’s opinion, based on the results of the evaluation performed with the partici-
pation of the Company’s operational areas, it is not necessary to record an allowance for certain
spare parts and materials with slow turnover, due to the fact that it is expected that such spare
parts and materials will be used in the normal course of the Company’s operations.
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8. INVESTMENTS, NET
This item is made up as follows:

Company Main activity

P-—-

Subsidiaries (a)

Compania Eléctrica El Platanal S.A. (b) Electric power generation I

Inversiones en Concreto y Afines S.A. Holds a 60 percent equity investment in shares of
Unién de Concreteras S.A. - UNICON which
main activity is the production and

Pt

commercialization of concrete

Generacion Eléctrica de Atocongo S.A. Electric power generation I
Depdsito Aduanero Conchan S.A. Harbor services

Others

Others

Bonds and other investments
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Percentage of share in net equity Amount
2006 2005 2008 2005
S/(000) S/H000)
60.00 60.00 59,472 6
60.00 60.00 29,492 25,486
99.85 99.85 4,045 3,886
99.00 99.00 2,343 485
1,677 165
97,029 30,028
123 123
97,152 30,151
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{a) The participation in the net income (loss} of its subsidiaries is as follows:

2006 2005

5/{000) $/(000)

Inversiones en Concreto y Afines S.A. 4,005 1,637
Generacién Eléctrica de Atocongo S.A, 158 381
Deposito Aduanero Conchan S.A. 1,858 144
Qther minors 28 (25)
6,049 2,137
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The value of the participation in the net equity of its affiliates has been determined on the
base of the unaudited financial statements presented by the respectives companies as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

(b) On December 28, 2005, CompahiaEléctrica el Platanal S.A. {hereafter CELEPSA) was cons-
tituted. The company made a contribution of US$18,000,000 (equivalent to $/569,472,000)
for the CELEPSA's Constitution. CELEPSA’s objective is the development and operation of
the Concession of Electrical Generation G-1 El Platanal. See Note 10(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

9, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
The annual movement and accumulated depreciation balances are as follows:

Lands Buildings  Roads Other  Machinery
and camps constructions
S/000) $/(000)  Sf{ooo) S/(000) S/(000) L‘
Cost .
Balance as of January 1, 2006 27,963 271,684 5,407 43,487 1,353,865 l_
Additions 1,296 256 88 84 47
Retirements and others (282) {678) - - {3.577) .
Transfers 568 4,730 - 1326 31,798 |_!
Balance as of December 31, 2006 29,545 275,992 5,495 44,897 1,382,133 __‘
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2006 - 134,956 4,221 33,934 1,034,999
Additions - 6,053 59 1,795 78,332 B
Retirements and others - - - - {3,093) I_
Balance as of December 31, 2006 - 141,009 4,280 35,729 1,110,238
Provision for impairment I
Balance as of January 1, 2006 - - - - -
Additions - - - - -
§ Balance as of December 31, 2006 - - - - - l:
: Net book value 29,545 134,983 1,215 9,168 271,895
|
I
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Vehicles Furniture Other Replacement Work in Total Total

and fixtures equipments equipments progress 2006 2005

S/(000) S/{000} S/{000) S/(000} S/(000) S/(000) $/(000)

""I 13,218 12,072 27,037 20,381 107,625 1,882,739 1,788,585
442 176 882 4,279 59,808 67,358 96,819

i {861) - {14) {95) {539} {6,046) {2,665)
J 591 158 939 (604) (39,506) - -
13,390 12,406 28,844 23,961 127,388 1,944,051 1,882,739

I 8,196 10,842 20,976 - - 1,248,124 1,157,785
1,410 330 1.853 - - 89,832 92,272

:l {776) - (5) - {3,874) (1,933)
8,830 11,172 22,824 - 1,334,082 1,248,124

l - - (4,192) - {4,192} {2,529)

- {1,783} - {1,783) {1,663)

:l - - {5,975) - (5.975) {4,192)
4,560 1,234 6,020 17,986 127,388 603,994 630,423
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(a) Fully depreciated assets -
Fully depreciated assets as of December 31, 2006 amounted approximately to /911,642,000
(approximately to /561,471,000 as of December 31, 2005).

{b} Interests -

The caption “Property, plant and equipment” includes loans costs, net of accumulated de-
preciation, amounting approximately of /13,223,000 and $/17,391,000 as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

{c) Work in progress -

Work in progress corresponds to investments made by the Company, mainly in the cons-
truction of the Atocongo - Canchan conveyor belt and the conversion of the burning syste-
ms of kiln | and 1l for using natural gas.

{d) The Company maintains insurance coverage on its main assets in accordance with the po-
licies established by Management. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has in-
surance coverage for all of its properties; the Company’s maximum loss exposure is US$55

-




millions. The covered value of the insured items is US$418 and US$413 millions as of Dec-
ember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In Management's opinion, the insurance policies are
consistent with international practice in the industry and the coverage for risk of loss due to
accidents and events covered under the insurance policy is reasonable, based on the type of
assets owned by the Company.

(e} Depreciation is distributed as follows:

2006 2005

$/(000) S/000}

Operating costs, Note 19 58,612 61,175
Administrative expenses, Note 20 31,220 31,097
89,832 92,272

i----_--
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10. OTHER ASSETS, NET

The annual movement in the other assets account and accumulated amortization balances

are as follows:

Hydroelectric Other Quarries
Project concessions Closing
El Platanal (a)
$/(000} $/(000) S/(000}
Cost
Balance as of January 1, 2006 34,815 14,462 -
Additions 2,664 143 2,817
Balance as of December 31, 2006 37,379 14,605 2,817
Accumulated amortization
Balance as of January 1, 2006 - 4,573 -
Additions - 676 122
Balance as of Daecember 31, 2006 - 5,249 122
Net book value 37,379 9,356 2,695

o (| ] o -




Deferred Total Total
charges 2006 2005

$/(000) $/(000) $/{000)

33,025 82,302 76,270

' 3,119 8,643 6,032
' 36,144 90,945 82,302
] 32,559 37,132 32,958
3,108 3,906 4173

_l 35,667 41,038 37,131
. 477 49,907 45,171
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{a) In November 1996, the Company obtained a temporary concession to complete feasi-
bility studies related to electric power generation activities in the Cafiete River, located in
the Canete province, department of Lima. In June of 1998, the Company entered into a
business partnership agreement with Cemento Andino S.A. by virtue of which the Com-
pany became the Project’'s operator with a 67 percent interest; the remaining interest in the
Project was assumed by Cemento Andine S.A. The duration of the contract extends until
the Company transfers the feasibility studies to the company that will execute such plans.

By means of Supreme Resolution N°130-2001-EM, the Peruvian Government granted the
Company a permanent electric power generation concession, including the right to use
water from the Cadete River. Pursuant to the Permanent Electric Power Generation Con-
cession Contract signed with the Ministry of Energy and Mines, the Project’s scope includes
the construction of two hydroelectric plants with a total generation capacity of 270 me-
gawatts; the Project’s construction budget is US$270 millions, plus US$70 millions related
to irrigation and other works, and completion is estimated in the term of three to four years.
Furthermore, by means of Supreme Resolution N°036-2003-EM as of October 2, 2003, it
was approved the division of the permanent electric power generation concession in two
independent power generation concessions: G-1 El Platanal with an installed capacity of
220 megawatts and G-2 Morro de Arica with an installed capacity of 50 megawatts.

The General Shareholders” Mesting held on November 4, 2005, approved the Framework In-
vestment Agreement that will be entered into by and between Cementos Lima S.A., Cemento
Andino S.A. and Corporacién Aceros Arequipa S.A. to create Compafiia Eléctrica El Platanal
S.A. - CELEPSA, which will develop and operate the Electric Power Generating Concession
“G-1 E| Platanal”. The total estimated investment is US$210 millions to be financed by
means of a bank loan and contributions made by the shareholders that founded Cementos

F------




Lima S.A., Cemento Andino S.A. and Corporacidn Aceros Arequipa S.A based on a 60, 30 and
10 percent shareholding, respectively. The programmed construction term is 35 months, ha-
ving started in the last quarter of 2006. At the moment, Company’s Management is negotia-
ting with its partners the manner in which the cost incurred in the project will be recovered.

11. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005

SA00D} S$/1000)

Overdrafts 7 37,404
Banco de Crédito del Peru, {a) 63,940 68,620
63.947 106,024

{a)l The bank loans correspond to promissory notes denominated in foreign currency and
was obtained to fund working capital needs of the Company. The promissory notes have
current maturities and are not backed by specific guarantees. The weighted average an-
nual interest rates of these bank loans were 5.90 and 3.74 percent as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

12. TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005

_ S/{000} $/(000)

Third parties (a) 23,393 30,656
Subsidiaries and related parties, Note 25(b) 4,365 6,070
27,758 36,726

(a) Trade accounts payable are generated principally from the acquisition of materials, su-
pplies, containers and packaging for the Company’s products. They are stated in both
domestic and foreign currency, have current maturities, do not accrue interest and no gua-
rantees have been given to assure these obligations.
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13. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005

S/(000) S/000)

Taxes and contributions 7,851 2,712
Provision for mine closing, Note 31(b) 2,817 -
Advances from customers 2,340 7,025
Remuneration payable 3,616 4,854
Private pension fund administrators {known as AFPs in Peru} 428 350
Interest payable 397 531
Social security contributions 381 351
Severance indemnity 372 342
Dividends payable, Note 16(d) 31 3
Provision for plant closing 20 -
Other 4,588 2,034
22,841 18,230

14. LONG-TERM DEBTS

The balance as of December 31, 2005 corresponded to Deutsche Investitions - und Entwic-
klungsgesellschaft mbH. The mortgage has been established on the ”Atocongo 5" concession
for a total amount of US$51,331,115, of which US$25,500,000 corresponds to this organization.
This loan was cancelled on March 15, 2006. The mortgages that guarantee the already cance-

lled loans are being solved.

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

15. DEFERRED LIABILITY FROM INCOME TAX AND WORKERS’ PROFIT SHARING
This item is made up as follows:

N,wa

Balance as Other Debit (Credit)
as of January 1, reclassifi- to the statement
2005 cations of income
S/(000) S/(000) S$/{000)
Deferred liability [
Effect from the increased value of assets
{revaluation) 51,414 - (6,932) o
Effect of capitalized interest 7.976 - {1,542) l
Effect of replacement parts
impairment provision (936) : (615) l*
Other {1,273) {2,069) {482)
57,181 (2.069) (9.571) I_




H‘--

Balance as Other Debit (Credit) Balance as

of December reclassifi- to the statement of December

31, 2005 cations of income 31, 2006

SA000) S/H000) S/(000} S/(000)

. 44,482 - (6,932) 37,550
l 6,434 - (1,54%) 4,893
(1,551} - {660) {2,211)

{3,824) 811 962 (2,051)

45,541 811 (8,171) 38,181

- s o mm me am
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2006 2005
$/(000) S/(000)
Distribution
Workers’ profit sharing -
Current 22,679 18,211
Deferred (2,208) (2,587)
Other adjustments - (425)
20,471 15,199
Income tax -
Current 61,234 49,171
Deferred {5,963) {6,984)
Other adjustments - (1,312)
55,271 40,875
75,742 56,074

I




ﬁ------

{a) The reconciliation of the effective tax rate for workers’ participation and income tax to
the legal combined rate for the years ended 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 % 2005 %
S/(000} $/(000)

Income before workers’
profit sharing and income tax 212,709 100.0C 159,867 100.0C
Combined legal rate 78,702 37.00 68,041 37.00
Adjustments - - (1,094} (0.71)
Non deductible expenses
{no taxables), net {2,960) {1.40)} {873) {0.05)
Workers’ profit and income
tax expenses 75,742 35.60 56,074 36.24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

16. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

{a) Capital stock -

Capital stock subscribed and paid as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, is comprised of
36,926,629 common shares, with a nominal value of $/10 per share, which are completely
emitted and paid.

Due to inflation effects originated as of December 31, 2004, the Company can increase its
capital stock in approximately /2,390,000 as of December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 the stock exchange quotation of the Company’s shares
was $/65 and S/40, respectively.

The capital stock structure as of December 31, 2006 is shown below:

Number of Whole
Percentage shares participation
More than 10% 1 68.03%
From 5% to 9.99% 3 20.48%
From 1% to 4.99% 2 4.84%
Less than 1% 593 6.65%
Total 599 100.00%

Annual Report 2006

™~




(b} Investment shares -
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there are 47,701,066 investment shares with a nominal
value of S/1 per share.

Due to inflation effects originated as of December 31, 2004, the Company can increase its
investment shares in approximately 5/3,087,000, as of December 31, 2006.

{c) Legal reserve -

According to the General Corporation Law, no less than 10% of the distributable profits
of each year, after deducting income tax, shall be transferred to a legal reserve up to an
amount equivalent to 20 percent of the capital stock. The legal reserve may be used to
offset losses or may be capitalized; in both cases, it should be restored from future profits.
Company has constituted the legal reserve limit required by General Society Law.

{d} Dividends paid -

The Board of Directors Meeting held on January 28, 2005, agreed to distribute dividends
charged to prior year's freely disposahle profits amounts approximately 5/19,089,000, who-
se payment was made on February 28, 2005. The Board of Directors meetings held on April
27, July 20 and October 286, 2005, agreed to distribute dividends charged to year 2005 freely
disposable profits amounted approximately 5/562,260,000 which were paid on, May 31, Au-
gust 24, and November 29, 2005, respectively.

The Board of Directors Meeting held on January 25, 2006, agreed to distribute dividends
charged to prior year freely disposable profits amounted to approximately $/18,083,000,
whose payment was made on February 28, 2006. The Board of Directors Meetings held

L----_-
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on April 26, July 19 and October 25, 2006, agreed to distribute dividends charged to year
2006 freely disposable profits for approximately $/55,751,000, which were paid on May 30,
August 22 and November 28, 2008, respectively.

17. TAX SITUATION
(a) The Company is subject to Peruvian Tax Law. Until December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
statutory income tax rate in Peru was 30 percent on taxable income.

Corporations not domiciled and citizens in Peru must pay an additional tax of 4.1 percent
on dividends.

{b) For purposes of determining the Income Tax and the Value Added Tax, transfer prices of
transactions with related companies and companies domiciled in tax-haven countries must
be supported with documentation and information regarding the valuation methods and
criteria used to determine them. Based on the analysis of the Company’s operations, itis
the opinion of Management and the Company'’s legal counsels that the application of these
legal provisions will not bring forth any significant contingencies as of December 31, 2006
and 2005. As of year 2004, the support for the transfer prices is solely required for tran-
sactions between related companies that individually pay their income tax in their country,
subject to filing an Informative Sworn Statement thereof, on a yearly basis.

*u-—-—-—-—-
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By means of Superintendence Resolution No. 008-2007 - SUNAT except itself from the obli-
gation of taking in consideration the transfer prices technical study for the fiscal year 2005
and 2006, in connection with the transactions that the taxpayer demiciled in the country
execute with their domiciled affiliates parties.

{c} The tax authorities are legally entitled to audit and, if necessary, adjust the incorme tax
calculated by the Company during the four years subsequent to the year of the related tax
return filing. The Company’s income tax and value added tax returns from the year 2004 to
2006 are still subject to audit by the tax authorities. Due to various possible interpretations
of current legislation, it is not possible to determine whether or not such audits will result
in tax liabilities for the Company; therefore, any eventual greater tax will be applied to the
results of the year in which it is determined. However, in Management's opinion and of
the Company’s legal advisors, any additional tax assessment will not be significant to the
Company’'s financial statements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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18. NET SALES
This iterm is made up as follows:

2006 2005
S/(000} SA000)
Local
Cement and clinker 637,387 546,633
Others 8,117 7,027
Exports 104,297 103,375
749,801 657,035
19. OPERATING COSTS
This item is made up as follows:
2006 2005
S$/(000) S/oo0)
Initial inventory of finished and in process
products, Note 7 82,326 71,430
Deferred stripping quarries cost 61,862 42,525
144,188 113,855

’----—ﬂ-




2006 2005

S/000) S$/(000)

Raw materials consumption 93,186 102,296
Fuel 97,655 104,381
Electric power 42,667 35,136
Personnel expenses, Note 22 22,970 21,351
Containers 17,897 15,365
Depreciation, Note 9{e) 58,612 61,175
Other manufacturing costs 93,404 76,653
Final inventory of finished and in process products, Note 7 {71,182) {82,326)
Deferred stripping cost {78,642) {61,862)
{149,824) {144,188}

420,755 386,024

i-------
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Operating costs are allocated as follows:

2006 2005 I :
$/{000) 5/(000) |
Local |
Cement and clinker 338,018 293,851 l
Others 6,741 4,662
Exports 75,996 87,511 I
420,755 386,024 l
20. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
This item is made up as follows: I
2006 2005 I
8/(000) §/(000}
Depreciation, Note %{e) 31,220 31,097 l
Management services, Note 1 23,900 17,581
Personnel expenses, Note 22 12,814 12,373
§ Services rendered by third parties 7,383 9,297 '
: Various management expenses 9,251 7.374
a
. i
E
: 1




2006 2005
SA000) S$/(000)
Amortization, Note 10 3,906 4173
Taxes 3,974 3,919
Board’s remuneration 2,390 1,758
Period accruals 1,590 822
96,428 88,394
21. SALES EXPENSES
This item is made up as follows:
2006 2005
5/(000) 5/(000}
Sales commissions 11,947 11,239
Services rendered by third parties 12,243 10,136
Various management expenses 2,642 1,379
Personnel expenses, Note 22 560 483
Period accruals 34 29
27,426 23,266
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22. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
This item is made up as follows;

2006 2005
§/000) $/(000)
Remunerations 22,794 21,724
Bonuses 5,043 4,697
Contributions 2,805 2,740
Vacations 2,238 1,923
Training 565 473
Other 2,899 2,650
36,344 34,207

Personnel expenses have been recorded in the following captions:
2006 2005
S$/(000) $/t000)
Operating costs, Note 19 22,970 21,351
Administrative expenses, Note 20 12,814 12,373
Selling expenses, Note 21 560 483
36,344 34,207

F-----




23. FINANCIAL INCOMES
This item is made up as follows:

2006 2005
SA000} $/(000)
Interest on deposits 1,135 326
Interest on other accounts receivables 1,008 920
Other 24 27
2,167 1,273
24. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

The item is made up as follows:
2006 2005
S/(000) S/(000)
Interest on overdrafts {2,551) {1,007)
Interest on bank loans {3,790) (2,429)
Interest on long-term debt (96) {909)
Other {323) {463)
(6,760} {4,808}

ﬁ----_--
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25. TRANSACTIONS WITH PRINCIPAL, SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED PARTIES
{a) The main transactions between the Company and the Principal, its affiliates and related
parties were as follows:

2006 2005
5/{000) 5/000)
Sales of goods and services
Sale of cement (i) 47,980 40,859
Thermal plant lease services 2,168 1,981
Purchase of goods and services
Management fee, Note 1 23,900 17,581
Purchase of electric power 12,039 9,327
Engineering and technical assistance services 8,873 9,245

{i} It corresponds to the sales conducted to its subsidiary “UNICON" which are carried
out under the same conditions as with third parties; therefore, there are no differences as
regards price policies or bases for settlement for tax purposes. As to payment terms, the
policies granted to third parties are different from those involving its Principal and subsi-
diaries.

*----_-




{b) As a consequence of these and other less significant transactions, the Company has the
following accounts receivable and payable:

2006 2005
S5/(000) S/{000)
Trade accounts receivable, Note 5
Union de Concreteras S.A, 684 15,233
Other accounts receivable
Depdsito Aduanero Conchdn S.A. - 1,152
Minera Adelaida S.A. 110 698
Generacion Eléctrica de Atocongo S.A. 204 660
Inversiones en Concreto y Afines S5.A. - -
Sindicato de Inversiones y Administracion S.A, 153 160
Unién de Concreteras S.A. - 19
Nuevas Inversiones S.A. 4,791 -
Other 1,698 735
6,956 3,424

i------
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2006 2005
S/(000) S/(000)

Trade accounts payable, Note 12
Depdsito Aduanero Conchan S.A. 1,636 1,584
ARPL Teconologia Industrial S.A. 1,475 2,101
Union de Concreteras S.A. 485 1,499
Generacién Eléctrica de Atocongo S.A, 869 804
Transportes Lurin S.A. - 82
4,365 6,070

Other current liabilities

Sindicato de Inversiones y Administracion S.A. 14,086 10,492
Transportes Lurin S.A, - 30
14,086 10,522

?------
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(e) The expenses on profits, remunerations and other concepts to the members of the Di-
rectory and the company’'s Key Management, amounted to $/6,792,000 during year 2006
{5/6,485,000 in 2005). The company does not remunerate with long term benefits like post-
retirement or completion of contract, nor payment based on shares to the Management.

26. CONTINGENCIES

The Company is currently involved in various tax, legal and labor proceedings related to its
operations. In Management’s opinion and of its legal advisors, the final outcome of these
proceedings will not represent significant expenses for the Company, and therefore, no
provisions as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are needed. The principal proceedings are
described below:

{a) On December 19, 2003, the Company was notified by the Intendancy Resolution N° 000-
ADF/2003-000700, emitted by the Intendancy of Supervision and Customs Collection Ma-
nagement {Intendencia de Fiscalizacion y Gestion de Recaudacion Aduanera}, which orders
the Company to return the benefits of the Drawback used, plus the fine and penalty interest
rates, for a total amount of approximately S/10,3565,000. The resolution considers that the
Company unrightfully used the restitution of tariff rights in the years 2001 and 2002. By
means of Resolution No. 07238-A-2005, dated November 25, 2005, the Tax Court confir-
med the resolutions issued by the Tax Administration. To that matter, the Company has
brought an administrative litigation before a judge who deals with administrative matters
and also a precautionary measure. It is the opinion of Management and the Company’s
legal counsel that the Tax Intendancy Resolution and Tax Court Resolution No. 07238-A-
2005, have no sound legal basis whatsoever and that this contingency should be resolved
in favor of the Company.
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{b) On July 16, 2004, the Company was notified with the Determination Resolutions amoun-
ting approximately $/10,759,000 due to real estate and municipal taxes, fines and interests
over land under concession buildings on concession land. On August 13, 2004, the Com-
pany filed an appeal given that it considered the pretended collection to be unrig htfully. By
means of Management Resolution No. 2249-2005-GR/MVMT, dated December 1, 2005, the
Villa Maria del Triunfo District Municipality dismissed the Company’s claim as groundless.
On December 28, 2005, the Company has filed an appeal which is pending resolution to
date. Management and its legal counsels have assessed the impact of this contingency and
it is their opinion that the position adopted by the Company should prevail in the respective
instances.

{c) After the completion of the merger between Lar Carbén S.A. and the Company effective
on March 1, 2003, the Tax Administration notified the Determination Resolutions N° 012-03-
0002378 to 012-03-0002380, which determined a debt for Income Tax and Value Added Tax
corresponding to the year 2001 plus the respective fines arising from the discounts granted
for the export operations of the Company, as well as a supposed undervaluation of assets
and the depreciation’s calculation of Lar Carbén S.A,, for a total amount of approximate-
ly $/1,652,000. On March 31, 2003, the Company filed a partial Reclamation Proceeding
against the Determination Resolutions. As of the date of this report, the Tax Administration
has not yet responded. In Management's and its legal advisors’ opinion, this situation will
be resolved in favor of the Company.

S




{d} On December 16, 2004, the Company was notified by the National Tax Superintendence
{known as SUNAT in Peru) of Tax Assessment Resolutions and Fine Imposing Resolutions
for an aggregate amount of approximately $/12,763,000, related to the Value Added Tax
and Income Tax corresponding to fiscal years 2000 and 2001. These resolutions adjust
the revenues from exports of cernent and clinker to the USA, expenses owing to the effect
of the recalculation of the tax credit prorate, revenues from adjustment of sales of type Il
cement, camp and teaching service expenses, and three more items that the Company
accepted at the time of filing its claim. On January 12, 2005, the Company filed a tax claim
against the unaccepted objections amounting to approximately 5/10,682,000, which in the
opinion of Management and the Company’s legal counsels will be resolved favorably.

{e) On October 26, 2006, the company was notified by the National Tax Superintendence
{SUNAT) of tax Assessment Resolutions and Fine Imposing Resolutions for an aggregate
amount of approximately $/13,644,676, related to the Value Added Tax and Income Tax
corresponding to fiscal years 2002 and 2003. Said resolutions, adjusted the revenues for
exports of cement and clinker to the USA, considering said sales are under its market value;
the expenses for not having call option right of mining concession and camping expenses
and teaching services. On November 23, 20086, the Company files a tax claim, which in the
opinion of Management and the Company’s legal counsels will be resolved favorably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

27. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The weighted average number of shares to be used in the basic and diluted earnings per I
share calculation is determined as follows:
Common shares l
QOutstanding Days in effect Weighted
shares until the average l
year end of shares
Year 2005 l
Balance as of January 1%, 2005 36,926,629 365 36,926,629
Balance as of December 31, 2005 36,926,629 36,926,629 l
Year 2006 l_
Balance as of January 1st, 2006 39,926,629 365 36,926,629
Balance as of December 31, 2006 36,926,629 36,926,629 l
As of December 31, 2006
Income Shares Earnings I
(numerator}  {denominator) per share
g S/ S/ '
14 Earnings per common share, basic and diluted 121 ,298,000 36,926,629 3.28
g _
« Earnings per investment share, basic and diluted 15,669,000 47,701,066 0.33 |_
E .



Investment shares
Outstanding Days in effect Weighted
shares until the average
year end of shares
47,701,066 365 47,701,066
47,701,066 47,701,066
47,701,066 365 47,701,066
47,701,066 47,701,066

As of December 31, 2005

Income Shares Earnings
{numerator)  (denominator) per share
S/ 5/
89,262,000 36,926,629 2.42
11,531,000 47,701,066 0.24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

28. RISK CONCENTRATION

Assets that are potentially exposed to credit risk concentrations correspond to deposits in
banks and financial institutions, trade accounts receivable and receivables from affiliates.
The Company has significant bank balances in various major local financial institutions of
renowned prestige in the domestic and foreign markets. In Management’s opinion, as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, there are no credit risks. Likewise, the Company has a porifo-
lio of customers that have adequate credit history and continuously monitors its debtors’
payment hehavior.

29, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Peruvian accounting standards define a financial instrument as any contract that gives rise
to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another enterprise. Cash, as defined by Peruvian accounting standards, is any contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial instruments or equi-
ty instruments with another enterprise. Financial instruments include primary instruments
such as accounts receivable, accounts payable and equity.

According to the Management’s opinion, the fair value of the Company’s financial instru-
ments approximates their carrying values, because it has the greater part of its short-term
financial instruments at market interest rate, therefore, the disclosure of said information
has no effect on the financial statements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

’--A-‘----




30. MINING ROYALTY

On June 24, 2004, the Peruvian Congress approved Law 28258 - Mining Royalty Law. This law
seeks to establish the mining royalty that the owners of the mining concessions should pay
for the exploitation of metallic and non-metallic mineral resources. The mining royalty will be
calculated with rates ranging from 1to 3 percent over the mineral concentrates value or equi-
valent, according to the quoted market price published by the Ministry of Energy and Mines.
As of November 15, 2004, it was approved the law’s regulation. The Company has complied
with making the payment of the mining royalty as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

31. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
The Company's activities are subject to environmental protection standards. The Company
must comply with the following regulations:

(a) Industrial activity -

In compliance with Supreme Decree N°019-97-ITINCI - Environmental Protection Regulatio-
ns for the Development of Activities Pertaining to the Manufacturing industry, dated Sept-
ember 26, 1997, the Company, on January 29, 2001, submitted to the Ministry of Industry,
Tourism, Integration and International Trade Negotiations - MITINCI (now denominated
PRODUCE) its Environmentai Management and Compliance Program {PAMA}, which was
approved by MITINC! on February 1, 2002,

L------
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

The Company estimates that the expenditure required to tackle the situations identified in
its PAMA amount to approximately US$10.8 million, which within 5 years of its approval,
will be mainly targeted to the improvement and installation of dust filters in the clinker pro-
duction system, the construction of a treatment plant of effluents and for the monitoring of
the air quality.

As of December 31, 2006, the aggregated investment of PAMA is approximately US$9.6
millions.

(b} Mining and port activities -

With regard to its mining and port activities, the Company has submitted to PRODUCE the
corresponding Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) and is complying with its commit-
ments and terms established in said assessments. The aggregate investment as of December
31, 2006 is approximately US$4.2 millions {US$3.7 millions as of December 31, 2005).

Also, on October 14, 2003 the Congress of the Republic enacted Law 28090 that regulates
close of mines. This law intends regulates the obligations and procedures that must comply
the holders of the mining activity for the elaboration, presentation and implementation of the
Plan of Closing of Mines, and the constitution of the corresponding environmental guarantees,
that assure the fulfillment the investments that includes with subjection to the principles of
protection, preservation and recovery of the environment. The Company has presented the
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Ministerio de la Produccidon and Ministerio de Energia y Minas, within set dates according to
regulations of this law, studies of Closing Plans of its Mining Production Units. The studies of
Closing Plans have established the warranty and future investment, when final and progressi-
ve closings of mining activity of each production unit will be carried out.

During August 2006, the independent consultants hired by the Company conclude the Study
of the Mining Closing. Said study compiled the concepts included in the Supreme Decree
No. 033-2005-EM, Regulation for Mining Closing {The Regulation} published on August 13,
2005. As of December 31, 20086, the total liability for mining closing amount to 5/2,817,000
approximately, see Note 13. The allowance for mining units closing corresponds basically
to activities that should be carried out for the restoration of affected zones by mining activi-
ties. Land movement and reforestation are the main jobs that should be carried out.

{c) Use of hydrocarbons -

Supreme Decree N°046-93-EM - Regulations for Envirenmental Protection in Activities Per-
taining to Hydrocarbons, dated November 12, 1993, governs the activities of the Company
with respect to the use of hydrocarbons. In compliance with this decree, the Company has
a PAMA approved by the Ministry of Energy and Mines in 1996. The aggregated invest-
ment as of December 31, 2006, is approximately US$78.0 thousand {US%$76.3 thousand as
of December 31, 2005).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2006, and 2005

Special Projects -
As of December 31, 2006, the projects Company has been carrying out are as follows:

{i)} Ecologic Band Atocongo - Conchan

A Project that consists in the construction of a tunnel of 6,800 m of length approximately
between the industrial plant situated in the district of Villa Maria del Triunfo and the Port
Operations Dock situated in the district of Villa El Salvador as well as the paving of the
avenues Lima, El Parque y Maria Reiche, benefiting nearby communities, which will enable
improve the environment quality of the area reducing the transit of heavy vehicles and
urbanization by new roads and sidewalks. The Environmental Impact Study of this project
was approved in May 2002 by the Ministerio de la Produccion. As of today the civil work
related to say project has been finished, having yet in process the assembly of the mecha-
nic electric equipment, the project is expecting to be finished in the next 12 months. The
investment as of December 31, 2006 amount to US$35.3 millions.

F----_-
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(i) Use of natural gas in the Industrial Plant

This project will enable the using of natural gas coming from Camisea’s deposit, as thermal
energy during the process of cement manufacture, which will reduce gas emissions in
more than 30%, improving the environmental air quality and energetic production cost.
Currently, the interconnection of the system by gas in Furnace Il is working, and the inter-
connection of Furnace | is expected to be working in April 2007. The accrual investment as
of December 31, 2006 amount to US$5.5 millions.

The Company is working to obtain certification of carbon gas emission reduction, within
the Clean Development Mechanism of Kyote Protocol, substituting coal by natural gas,
which is necessary for the investment profitability.

32. EXPLANATION ADDED FOR TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis of generally accepted
accounting principles in Peru {“Peru GAAP"}). Certain accounting practices applied by the
Company that conform to Peru GAAP may differ in certain respects to generally accepted
accounting principles in other countries.
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Prologue

Ever more companies are introducing business social responsibility initiatives instead of
making donations without further obligation and commitment,

At Asociacion Atocongo we have been reflecting on the meaning of the commitment made
by Cementos Lima S.A. for three years: developing social programmes and projects to give
the communities of the southern areas of Lima more and more autonomy. This is not an
easy task, but in the long term it ensures that local communities will have control over their
own future.

As often happens at first, it is sometimes difficult and frustrating trying to convince the di-
fferent members of the Southern Cone community that the effort, collaboration and, ahove
all, capacity of the association are the best way to achieve this vision. Nevertheless, the
satisfaction created over these three years makes us ever more optimistic about the effec-
tiveness of our different lines of action.

The positive results of our CSR {corporate social responsibility) are the product of dialo-
gue with different interest groups on subjects ranging from the nature of the business to
corporate culture and the situation of the sector. Our participation at the different levels of
dialogue and collaboration enable us to affirm that social responsibility concerns both the
public and private sectors and civil society. Strengthening abilities facilitates the reduction
of inequality, the creation of opportunities and social inclusion - a subject of much impor-
tance in Peru for many years.

*_----
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Asociacion Atocongo, as the corporate social responsibility arm of Cementos Lima S.A.,
will remain committed to the work of strengthening the abilities of members of the least-
favoured communities, to facilitate the road to self-development.

The subjects of global warming and climate change, desertification, water shortages and
their consequences for the planet have not passed us by. As a socially responsible com-
pany we are concerned to mitigate the possible negative impacts of our activity as far as
possible. The projected treatment plant for waste from our Atocongo plant {detailed in this
report} which involves an investment of US$ 600,000, is an example of these efforts.

We acknowledge and appreciate the commitment and support of the senior manage-
ment of Cementos Lima S.A. and all its collaborators, similarly, we value the efforts of the
community to impreove its current situation and its enthusiasm for taking part in the diffe-
rent programmes implemented by Asociacion Atocongo.

Finally, we thank our strategic partners who have enabled us to implement these pro-
grammes and to join forces to create value for the neediest people of southern Lima.

Armando Casis
General Manager
ASOCIACION ATOCONGO
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Our company

SOCIAL AIMS

he company’s purpose is the manu-

facture and sell of clinker, cement

and other construction materials, in

Peru and abroad, as well as opera-
tion of the Conchan Pier and comptementary
installations.

The company may carry out all operations,
actions or contracts and develop mining, ma-
nufacturing, commercial and port activities
necessary or appropriate for the production
and sale of clinker, cement and other cons-
truction materials.

The company may also invest in other com-
panies engaged in similar activities and/or
those that assist, develop or complement it in
Peru or abroad. Its social aims include invest-
ment in other companies engaged in electrici-
ty generating.

CORPORATE VALUES
» Excellence
» Responsibility
» Ethical conduct as the norm
» Commitment
» Innovation
» Legality

v

v

v

v

v

v

POLICIES AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
Quality, environment, safety and
occupational health policy

“At Cementos Lima S.A. we are dedicated to the
production and sale of clinker and cement and
the provisions of port services.

These are our commitments:

The satisfaction of our clients through the supply
of products that meet ASTM standards and other
agreed requirements, as well as complying with
the specifications agreed for the provisions of
port services.

Control of the risks inherent in our activities,
such as those relating to work carried out
above ground level, in confined spaces and
in areas with high temperatures and live
electrical energy.

The prevention of contamination and control of
our environmental aspects, such as emissions,
solid waste and energy consumption, thus
contributing to improvements in the quality of
life and of the community.

Compliance with legal requirements and
those entered into by the organisation, as
well as the protection of our rights as a
company.

Protection of our operations against possible
use by illegal organisations.

Continual improvements to the effectiveness
of our integrated management system.

Qur success is based on the skills and
attitude of everyone working here to protect
quality, security, costs, harmony and the
environment.”

*
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“The community is very grateful to
Cementos Lima for all the help it has
given. The latest donation we recei-
ved was 188 bags of cement for a re-
taining wall so that vehicles now have
somewhere to turn round. This work
will enable the municipality to collect
rubbish and will help with the transport
of construction materials.”

Interviewee: Mr Mariano Farfan
Age: 75

Job: Construction of a retaining wall
through the Urban” Off to work”
programme

Location: Primer Hogar Policial

Marginal Settlement

N2 of beneficiaries: 300 families
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Board of
directors

Chairman Ricardo Rizo Patron
Vice-chairman Carlos Ugas
Secretary Julio Ramirez
Treasurer Alvaro Morales
Director Diego De La Torre
Director Maria Elena Rizo Patron
General Manager Armando Casis
Legal Adviser Luis Gastaneta

3
Mission

To help and actively promote
action and projects, social,
educational and cultural investment
using its own resources and
strategic alliance with Peruvian

and international organisations

and institutions. Also 1o contrihute
to an environment of cooperation
and confidence between private
companies and the community

in order to achieve sustainable
development.
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Corporate
Sustainability

Building excellence with
responsability

) INNOVATIVE AND PARTIGIPATORY
INITIATIVES FOR PRESERVING THE
ENVIRONMENT
“Getting a project like this has been
a great achievement for my commu-
nity. It has meant a gradual improve-
ment, particularly in food and we are
still learning so that we can sell our
crops and make an income that will
enable us to pay for the basics like
water and electricity”.

Interviewee: Mrs Honorato Huaman
Qccupation: Housewife

Age: 53

Location: Ciudad de Gosen marginal
settlement

District: Villa Maria del Triunfo
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Corporate

Sustainability

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

n recent years we have consolidated,

as far as the economic aspect is con-

cerned, as the largest cement manu-

facturer in Peru, for which the inter-
national cement market is an important
option. Improvement and the constant
search for efficiency and cost control mark
the path taken by management in its drive
{0 increase the company's profitability and
competitiveness, both in Peru and abroad.

ECONOMIC INDICATORS 2005

The balance sheet and profit and loss
account as at the 31st of December 20086,
which have been approved by the annual
general meeting, show turnover of 5/.750
million (14% greater than in 2005) and net

profits of §/.137 million, , that is 36% higher
than in 2005 when the figure was $/.101 mi-
llion.

For the sixth consecutive year, Cemen-
tos Lima S.A, was the leading exporter in
Peru’s non-metallic mining sector, accoun-
ting for 23,6% of total exports from that
sector during 2006 (at FoB value in United
States dollars).

This sustained leadership was acknowled-
ged by the Association of Exporters (ADEX)
and the Banco de Credito del Peru, which,
in November awarded our Chairman Jaime
Rizo Patron Remy the “Businessman of the
Year: Peru Exports” award for 2005.

Expressed in dollars, exports grew 1.3%
compared with 2005, because contract pri-

+-‘-_-




For the sixth consecutive year, Cementos Lima S.A. was the leading exporter in
Peru’s nonmetallic mining sector, accounting for 23,6% of total exports from that
sector during 2006 (at FoB value in United States dollars).

ces for 2006 were 15% higher {compared
with 2005}, which offset a reduction in the
volume exported when priority was given
to the domestic market. The principal des-
tinations for our exports were the United
States (96,7%} and Ecuador (3,3%).

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

At Cementos Lima S.A. we believe that the
true approach to sustainability incorporates
not only excellence in economic and ope-
rations management, but also observance
of the principles of good corporate gover-
nance and progressive implementation of
improved practices. Thus our concern is a
response both to a respect for the legisla-
tion governing our market and our desire to
generate sustainable value.
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Community in the southern cone of Lima

The declaration of the company's corporate
values includes ethical conduct because this
is the underlying essence of a management
focused on good corporate governance.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

Indicators of corporate social
responsibility (CSR)

Cementos Lima S.A. and Asociacion Ato-
congo have risen to the challenge of trans-
lating their commitment to sustainable de-
velopment into a system of management
that puts into practice their corporate social
responsibility in a structured and systema-

tic manner.

To achieve this it is necessary to have indi-
cators to monitor and evaluate their practi-
ces in the different interest groups in an ob-
jective and measurable way. We therefore
believe that the Ethos indicators are very
useful tools.

We have accepted the challenge of incor-
porating these indicators into this report to
evaluate our social responsibility, focusing
on three interest groups: collaborators, the

i ElInstituto Ethos de Empresas y Responsabilidad Social es una arganizacién brasilera no gubernamental creada en 1998, con la misién de movilizar, sensibitizar y I |
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OLLABORATOR
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Total number of employees in 2006 346
Number dismissed curing the year 0
Percentage of women in the company 17.34%
Percentage of women in supervisory or management positions 11.11%
Percentage of employees over 45 62%
Average hours of training a year 49.24
Average overtime per employee per year 254
Is the work force unionised? Yes

) ey

l ayudar a las empresas a administrar sus negocios en forma socialmente responsable, volviéndolas aliadas en a construccion de una sociedad sostenible y justa,

Asociacién Atocongo 15
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Collaborators meeting the safety regulations for
hazardous working.

community and the environment.
PROGRAMMES WITH OUR

INTERNAL CLIENTS CONCERNING
INDUSTRIAL SAFETY, AREA AND
TECHNICAL INSPECTIONS AIMED AT

THE PREVENTION OF INCIDENTS

Our safety and industrial hygiene department
has carried out different activities aimed at
complying with legal requirements, internal
regulations and the provisions of the Safety
and Hygiene Programme for 2006.

These activities involved the following
areas and operations;

a. Open pit mines or quarries.

b.Industrial plant.

¢. Jetty and port installations.

d. Administrative and service buildings.
e.Cement warehouses.

f. Extensions or new buildings for

Cementos Lima.
IN order to manage compliance with re-
gulations concerning health, safety and
the environment and the prevention of
risks, the following controls have been
implemented:

1.1. Safety committee

1.2. |dentification and evaluation of risks

1.3. Accident investigation

1.4. Inspections and audits

1.5. Working regulations

1.6. Signalling

1.7. Emergency stations

1.8. Emergency plan

1.9. Fire fighting
1.10. Monitoring of physical / chemical con-
taminants and personal protection equip-
ment.

-



ACTIVITY

Medical examinations before hiring

BENEFICIARIES
8

Occupaticnal clinical examinations 196
Chest X-rays {lungs) 283
Laboratory examinations 310

Induction training on occupational health and infectious and contagicus diseases 202

CERTIFICATION
' In order to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks associated with tools and equip-
ment, the following items are certified to
lb international standard:
Lifting gear, electrical and gas welding
* equipment
l» Motor vehicles, both light and heavy
Motor vehicle operators
' SAFETY IN INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL
TRANSPORT
In order to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks associated with motorised equip-

No cases of occupatienal illnesses were found among the workers.

ment inside and outside the installations of
Cementos Lima S.A. the following controls
* will continue:
» Operators: Defensive driving courses
* Vehicles: Safety inspections
The environment: Horizontal and vertical
signalling {only for external transport: on
roads adjacent to CLSA's operations)

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

During 2006 the following occupational
health activities were carried out as part of
our commitment to our collaborators.

Asociacion Atocongo 17
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DEVELOPMENT OF PERSONNEL AND
SOCIAL WELFARE.

Training and development of our
personnel

The company provides training progra-
mmes to all personnel as part of its com-
mitment to continual improvement. Thus,
during 2006 a total of 17,036 M-H were pro-
vided, equivalent to an average of 49.24
hours per employee.

CLASSIFICATION OF MAN-HOURS
DEVOTED TO TRAINING

2,649 M-H 12,939 M-H | 1,448 M-H |17,036 M-H

i\\ Analiza

Planifica

Actia v’

The month of September saw the end of the
fourteenth training programme for professio-
nals, which involved 30 young professionals
from different disciplines.

At the same time the fifteenth programme
got under way, with the participation of 33
professionals.

Classification 2005 2006
Scholarship holders | 30 33

Furthermore, and mindful of the need to
help Peru’s university students, the com-
pany was visited by 5,648 students from
various universities.

e
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Administrative 135 136
Staff 100 102
Employees 113 108
Total 348 346

The chart includes personnel working in the Atocongo plant, Conchan pier and administration offices.

UNION NEGOTIATIONS

The company maintained harmonious rela-
tions with all its employees continued 2006
and this translated into high levels of per-
formance and productivity.

SOCIAL WELFARE PROGRAMMES FOR
THE EMPLOYEES OF CEMENTOS LIMA
AND THEIR FAMILIES

Cementos Lima S.A. encourages its em-
ployees and their families to take an active
part in different activities, programmes and
social projects aimed at helping to improve
their quality of life.

Individual attention to employees and their
families

We assist and support employees who are
undergoing perscnal or family probiems or
situations. We also coordinate and arrange
benefits deriving from Social Security, the
company and its subsidiaries as well as me-
dical and industrial accident insurance for our
employees, pensioners and families. During
2006 we took such action 5,056 times.

-
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Our objective is to train people for the labour market and thus
improve family incomes and, therefore, the quality of life.

Useful holiday programme for children,
young people and adults

The Useful Holiday - Summer 2006 progra-
mme was impiemented from the 2nd of
January to the 28th of February, lis purpo-
se was to provide a set of activities aimed
at encouraging good use of free time and
the integral development of participants.
The programme was aimed at children,
young people and adults resident at the
Atocongo Site

Two types of activities were provided:

The first type was academic in nature, ai-
med at reinforcing primary education and
computer skills. Medical and dental exami-
nations were carried out. 272 students be-
nefited, whose parents attended the Work-
shop for Parents. They also went on two
excursions.

» The second area of activities consisted of a
set of 10 workshops, some of which were:
Early learning (50}, Dance {110}, Kung Fu
(94), Volleyball (76), Aerobics (96), etc., and
602 people took part.

Handicrafts programme for women
Started in 2006, this is a programme aimed
at young people and adults of both sexes.
lts objective is to train people for the labour
market or to work for themselves and thus
increase the family income and, therefore,
the quality of life.

It is organised thanks to an agreement het-
ween Cementos Lima S.A. and the Don
Bosco Technical Production Centre (CE-
TPROJ) in Villa Maria del Triunfo.

?---ﬁ
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Play, theatre, music, the plastic arts and verbal expression
increase children’s social skills and self esteem.

During the year 4 specialities were provided:
Hotel trade and tourism (71), handicrafts
{40), cosmetics {37) and electronics {12). A
total of 125 participants qualified from the
programme at Atocongo. From the start of
the cooperation agreement in 1994 to date,
Cementos Lima S.A. has helped 874 people
to obtain official qualifications.

Recreational programmes

Between January and December 2006 a
twice-weekly aerobics workshop was arran-
ged for the company’s female employees
and for the wives of employees living on the
Atocongo Site. A pilates workshop was also
held for female personnel.

Early learning programme

This programme, which lasted 9 months,
consisted of a workshop for girls and boys
aged from 6 months to 3.1/2 years of age,
the children of employees living on the Ato-
congo Site.

The purpose of the workshop was to use
play, physical expression, music, art, the
plastic arts, written and verbal expression to
increase the children’s social relation-ships
and self esteem, and at the same time deve-
lop the motor, cognitive and linguistic func-
tions, etc. Classes were held twice a week:
on Tuesday and Thursday, three times a day
according to age. The programme benefited
a total of 30 children under 3.

-
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Community

Building excellence with
harmony

} INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMMES
“Thanks to the help we receive from
Cementos Lima, we have improved
the quality of life of our community.
The community covers 22 city blocks
and there is an average of two thou-
sand parcels in the upper section of -
this settlement and we don’t have
water or drainage yet. Nevertheless,
with this retaining wall we soon will,
we can start working on the water

and sewerage connections.”

Interviewee: Mr Teofilo Escalante

Age: 47

Joh: Construction of retaining wall

through the Urban “Off to work”

Programme and Asociacion Atocon-

go Infrastructure Programme.

Location: Primer Hogar Policial Mar-

ginal Settferment
District: Villa Maria del Triunfo

N¢ of beneficiaries: 2000 families.
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An environmental education programme aimed at integral education
in harmony with the environment.

EDUCATION PROGRAMMES

Our aim is to develop the skills of all the-
se involved in education: children, young
people, teachers and parents in commu-
nities with fewer opportunities. In this
way we will help to support an education
based on values, attitudes, commitments
and knowledge that will built the road to
self-development.

“Environmental education” programme
The purpose of this programme was to
promote environmental education in the
Southern Cone of Lima, which would have
the active participation of all actors (stu-
dents, parents, teachers and the communi-
ty) and guide the integral education of pu-
pils in harmany with the environment.

The programme included important com-
ponents such as field visits to the Amancay

Sanctuary and a drawing competition entitled
“Amancay Sanctuary”.

“Teaching Values” Programme

This is a creative proposal to introduce the
teaching of values into initial, primary and se-
condary education. it seeks to strengthen the
personal and professional skills of teachers
and to contribute to the creation of a positi-
ve climate in the classroom. The objective
is for children and young people to develop
spontaneous sentiments that will allow them
to live in harmony and with a better level of
understanding.

The programme includes a school for parents
that strengthens their role as educators by
providing information and guidance to impro-
ve childcare and support family harmony and
the bond between parents and children.

*---—--



“Reading Comprehension and Social
Skills” programme

A pilot programme was started with the
aim of strengthening the personal and
professional abilities of teachers by deve-
loping their communications and social
skills. This will enable them to handle new
strategies in the fields of reading compre-
hension and education.

Training in “The Environment and Values -
STRONG VOICE™ programme

This pregramme, which was started in 2003,
has produced young leaders in the districts
of Villa Maria del Triunfo, Lurin and Pacha-
camac. Their values, good hehaviour and
basic knowledge have been strengthened,

as well as their attitudes and skills, aimed at
development, industrial production and so-
cial protection, in harmony with economic
growth and the environment.

The young people of the “Buena Voz” pro-
gramme have a space for dialogue which
helps them to consolidate their persona-
lities and psychological structure so that
they can respond adequately to the social
problems in which they are immersed.

Throughout 2006 they have been carrying
out important activities such rubbish re-
cycling, road safety education and others.
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The RUM RUM El explorador programme is an interactive bus in
which children develop skills through play which stimulates their
knowledge and builds up their confidence.

“Mathematics for All” programme

As part of the national emergency progra-
mme, we have been involved since 2004
in a project called “Mathematics for All” in
the public schools of the Southern Cone of
Lima, with the aim of increasing the level of
skill at mathematics. This methodology, used
in German schools, consists of teaching ma-
thematics using situations or examples from
real life.

The creation of “book banks” in these
schools is providing pupils with high-quali-
ty educational materials. In addition, vario-
us workshops are held to update, motivate
and promote friendship among teachers
from different schools.

“RUM-RUM Explorer” proagramme

This programme is an interactive bus in
which children under 7 from the rural vilia-
ges of Guayabo, Picapiedra and Quebrada
Verde in the district of Pachacamac learn
and develop skills through play which sti-
mulates their knowledge and increases
their self confidence.

“Art, Children and Young People”
programme

“Art, Children and Young people” started in
2004 in conjunction with Asociacion Escuela
Declara and aims to develop artistic abilities
using the commeon language of an, for chil-
dren and young people with few opportuni-
ties in the district of Pachacamac.

EDUCATION PROGRAMMES

“Having a programme like “RUM-RUM EXPLORER” is very important for our school. This bus, which has been
equipped as a classroom for any subject, enables the children to develop skills and abilities other than the tradi-
tional ones. Here they learn through play, based on familiar circumstances so they learn more easily”.

Interviewee: Catalina Quispe | Occupation: Head Mistress of I.E N2 6100 “Santa Maria Reina”
Programme: Rum Rum Explorer | Location: CPR. Quebrada Verde | District: Pachacamac
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P KUNG FU PROGRAMME IN PACHACAMAG
“I found out about Kung Fu when some kids said there was a Kung Fu teacher, so | went and the teacher let

me take part, and that's how | got interested. The best thing this programme has shown me is respect for .
older people and discipline. When | grow up I'd like to be a doctor and if | get a black belt I'l be a Kung Fu
teacher. I'd also like to travel to other places representing Peru,”

Interviewee: Carlos Conde Rojas | Age: 12 afios | Origin: CPR Guayabo

District: Pachacamac

“Living School” de Asia programme
Escuela Viva is a programme that was star-
ted in 2004 and ended in October 2006. It
aimed to develop the cognitive and emotio-
nal abilities of students. It used the method
developed by the Yachay Wasi Institute for
Pedagogic Research, which places greater
empbhasis on knowledge than on rote lear-
ning and concentrates on achieving learning,
by both students and teachers, in five areas:
natural sciences, environmental education,
sexual and reproductive health education,
early learning and training in writing and rea-
ding comprehension.

“Kung Fu” sporting, recreational and
disciplinary programme

Kung Fu is perhaps the most technically
complex sparting discipline. Nevertheless it
has the great advantage of being an art that
very adaptable to its practitioners. For this
reason it can be easily adapted for children
who, by their nature, have a greater aptitu-
de and disposition to try new things which
amuse them and at the same time provide
health and discipline.

We started the Kung Fu programme in the
rural villages of Guayabo, Quebrada Verde
and Picapiedra in the district of Pachaca-
mac, with the participation of 100 children.
Through the practice of this sport — art, we
have helped them to grow stronger and
healthier, to improve their self esteem and
personality, and to give them a means of
self defence.

Students have learned through Jung Fu that
respect for the standards of everyday life
has useful and necessary aims. They have
also learned the importance of locking after
their minds and bodies, which is an exce-
llent defence against the bad habits that are
so frequent in our society, The parents of
this group of children were pleasantly sur-
prised to learn that children who practice
martial arts are much more tranguil and
less aggressive than those who do not, as
they don’t feel the need to demonstrate in
any violent way.

. -
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Sports programmes

At Asociacion Atocongo we are aware that
the madern world requires people with good
physical, emotional and intellectual training.
The development of artistic, emotional and
physical aspects through sport is as impor-
tant as intellectual capacity, hence our inter-
est in supporting and promoting sport in the
community.

5-a-Side Football - FUTSAL

Since 2004, the Cementos Lima S.A. - Aso-
ciacion Atoconge tournament has institu-
tionalised summer 5-a-side Futsal competi-
tions in the Southern Cone of Lima and
heiped to promote this sport,

Down Hill

Down Hill is one of the most popular spor-
ts in the Southern Cone of the city. In
2005 many of the competitions, as well as
the end-of-season tournament took pla-
ce in the Amancay Sanctuary and were
sponsored by the Asociacion Atocongo
and Cementos Lima.

Cultural, research and conservation pro-
grammes

Amancay Sanctuary

It is in the company's interest that its qua-
rrying activities continue in harmony with
the environment, at its concessions in Pa-
chacamac and Chiica, as well as encourage
environmental awareness among the popu-
lation and preserve the seasonal vegetation
growing in neighbouring areas.

We are also continuing with research work to
give educational institutions such as schools
and universities, a better knowledge of the
seasonal vegetation.

Amancay Sanctuary won the Business Creati-
vity award for 2006 from the Universidad de
Ciencias Aplicadas — UPC - in the following
category: Care of the environment.

iy
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i-----

Asociacion Atocongo 33




Sustainability Report 2006

4

The different works carried out consolidate the active participation
of the community and its identification with Asociacion Atocongo

Cementos Lima S.A.

Pueblo Viejo y Tablada de Lurin
As part of an agreement with the Catholic
University of Peru, we have carried out
archaeological research projects at Pue-
blo Viejo and Tablada de Lurin.

The work carried out at Pueblo Viejo has cla-
rified a number of questions on land mana-
gement and use of the environment in areas
of seasonal vegetation or lomas. Further-
more, archaeology students from the Catho-
lic University of Peru carry out their practical
work there.

INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMMES

The different projects carried out during 2006
consolidate the active participation of the
community and its identification with Aso-
ciacion Atocongo-Cementos Lima S.A. Appli-
cations are carefully evaluated to ensure that
donations of cement or other materials are
used in the programmed projects, for exam-
ple. retaining walls and school infrastructure.

Simitarly, we have carried out important
waorks with the Municipality of Villa Maria
del Triunfo, central government {through
the “A Trabajar Urbano” programme) and
with the NGO “Tierra de Nifios”, details of
which are given later on.

“Institutional Strengthening for Public
Schools” programme

In our effort to join forces to achieve synergies,
Asociacion Atocongo, in a strategic alliance
with the Spanish aid agency Ayuda en Ac-
cion and the Tierra de Nifios NGO, has been
operating a programme since 2004 aimed at
strengthening public schools and community
organisations in the Southern Cone,

The objective of this alliance is to make
innovative improvements in the infrastruc-
ture and equipment of these institutions, as
well as developing training programmes in
teaching and local management for head
teachers and teachers of public schools, and
community leaders.

*----
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We are thus attempting to provide the chil-
dren with appropriate premises that equipped
to for an adequate education, and to provide
community leaders with the skills to provide
high-quality teaching and management.

Urban “Off to work” programme
Throughout 2006 Asociacion Atocongo
has continued its direct participation in
the community through support for in-
frastructure construction approved by the
central government’'s Urban “Off to work”
programme.

»

The infrastructure programme aims to encourage a culture of solidarity
and sustainable development, in which individuals are responsible for

their own progress.

This programme seeks to generate temporary
jobs in marginal urban areas, as a mechanism
to fight poverty. Selected projects included
the construction of footpaths, retaining walls
and water and drainage networks.

The infrastructure programme aims to pro-
mote development through grass-roots
organisations and district social argani-
sations. The idea is to promote a culture of
solidarity and sustainable development in
which the individual is the driver of his own
development.
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P TRAINING PROGRAMME IN PACHACAMAC
“I'm very satisfied with everything I've learned to make in this programme, such as cakes, ice cream
cake, apple pie and “Dofha Pepa” turron. I'm even doing it for a living, I've made several cakes for
school proms in Manchay and Picapiedra and now they’re asking me for a golden wedding cake. It's
a great help for me, my children are at university and that's very expensive”,

Interviewee: Alicia Maria Camacho Callahua | Age: 51 anos | Occupation: Profesora de primaria
Crigin: CPR Picapiedra | District: Pachacamac
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“ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LOCAL
MANAGEMENT” PROGRAMME

This programme aims to generate develop-
ment opportunities that can be used by
the community to configure its own future
through the incentive of active and respon-
sible management.

The goal is to strengthen individual skills so
that people can enter the competitive world
of work, either waorking for a company or
creating their own businesses.

With this in mind, Asociacion Atocongo has
created a wide-ranging and effective action
network by means of strategic alliances
with international aid agencies and civil or-
ganisations, among others, and carries on
the fight against poverty through the deve-
lopment of social organisations.

“Training for Work” programme in the rural
village of EL GUAYABO - Pachacamac

This is a programme that provides training
for a group of around 34 women and one
man. These people come mainly from three
rural villages: El Guayabo, Picapiedra and
Quebrada Verde, in the district of Pachaca-
mac (women from Manchay also take part).
Its aim is to train these people as auxiliary
personnel in the hotel and catering indus-
try and seeks to promote self employment
through the creation of skills useful to small
businesses of individuals or small groups,
or to employees of other companies. Inte-
gral training based on values is also given
in addition to the vocational training.

*--



“Family Guidance” programme
This programme is aimed at mothers and, in
the future, fathers in the villages of El Gua-
yabo, Picapiedra and Quebrada Verde in the
district of Pachacamac. It covers subjects such
as family and marriage, in order to strengthen
the nuclear family.

Because its target population is mainly young,
it is also aimed at adolescents and addresses
their personal development through an edu-
cation in values.

Project competition:

“Innovative and participatory initiatives for
conserving the environment”. Agreement
between Asociacion Atocongo and the UNDP
Small Donations Programme

Asociacion Atocongo and the United Na-
tions Small Donations Programme have

held two competitions entitled “Innovative
Initiatives from Residents of the Southern
Cone for Conserving the Environment”, on
the 31st of May and the 18th of September.
Its purpose is to strengthen the role and le-
vel of management of the inhabitants and
grass-roots organisations in the Southern
Cone of Lima through raising awareness of
environmental protection.

The projects will last two years and every
project will receive financing of up to
$25,000. It is worth pointing cut that the
winning projects from the first compe-
tition are being implemented, most of
them successfully,

i--

Asociacion Atocongo 39




Sustainability Report 2006

Project N°6&

01

THE PROJECTS, BOTH THOSE BEING IMPLEMENTED AND THOSE AWAITING
IMPLEMENTATION ARE:

Project

Promoting food security through urban farming in sectors 6, 7, 9 and 10
of Villa El Salvador - Lima

02 | Participatory planning for the management of El Manzano lomas — Pachacamac
Promotion of ecotourism in Lomas de Villa Maria, a participatory experience in the marginal
03 settlement” Eden del Manantial, Jose Carlos Mariategui, Villa Maria del Triunfo - Lima I
04 | Urban farming by homes in sector 3 of Villa El Salvador - Lima
Urban replanting in marginal settlement Primero de Mayo - Nuevo Mitenio Zone,
051 Villa Maria del Triunfo - Lima I
Urban farming in Gosen marginal settlement, — Villa Maria Zone 7 - Nuavo Milenio, district
06 . . ) :
of Villa Maria del Triunfo - Lima
07 o . . :
Encouragement of urban cycling in Villa Maria del Triunfo, Lima
Promotion of urban farming to improve the guality of life of the residents of l
08| san Gabriel Alto - Villa Maria del Triunfo - Lima.
Encouragement of environmental education and conservation of medicinal and aromatic l
09 plants at Jorge Basadre School N? 6073 in Villa Maria del Triunfo - Lima.
10

Promotion of the use of luminous insect traps in Espiritu de Palo - Cafete

I_



’ Budget US$

=
| Institution Asociacion Status
. Atocongo

Health Promoters Association - VES

I Young People’s Association - Amancaes

Loma Verde Enviromentalist Association
Families in Action Association

Santa Teresita Mothers Club in Primero de Mayo
marginal settlement

Gosen marginal settlement

Extremos Sur Xtrem International Cycling and
Sport Association

San Gabriel Altc Mothers Club

l Jorge Basadre School N2 8073 Parent teachers
Association

l Espiritu Santo Growers Association
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Project N28

1

THE PROJECTS, BOTH THOSE BEING IMPLEMENTED AND THOSE AWAITING
IMPLEMENTATION ARE:

Project

A seed to grow; sustainable and productive parks in Sector 2 - VES

12

Promotion of urban farming by means of a pilot scheme for the disabled and
their families - VES

13

Conservation of coastal areas of seasonal vegetation (lomas) through the use of cloud
traps to encourage productive crops in the marginal settlements Bellavista, Los Angeles
and Quebrada Alta — JCM Zone - VMT

14

Conservation of coastal lomas containing native species on land belonging to the Asociacion
Agroindustrial Llanavilla -VMT

15

Environmental education

16

COMPQOST: Urban farming in homes in of Zone 5 in VMT

17

Management and ecotourism in lomas at El Manzano — Pachacamac

18

Replanting at Tara. Nuevo Quilmana — Cafiete

19

Urban farming for parish meals service at Tablada de Lurin




]

I
Budget US$
' Institution Asociacion UNDP Status
|J Atocongo
Recuperar - ECOREC Ecological Association 12,500 12,500 In progress
ll TRINO - Disabled Persons Association 12,500 12,500 In progress
0SB Mather's Club, of the Women's Social 12,500 12,500 In progress
Promaotion Association - VMT
{ ' Llanvilla Agro-Industrial Association 12,500 12,500 In progress
Agreement awaiting
' Republica de Nicaragua School N2 6076 12,500 12,500 subscription
Jorge Chavez Market Traders Association, Agreement awaiting
‘ San Francisco de Tablada, Lurin 12,500 12,500 subscription
Agreement awaiting
Amancaes Young People’s Association 12,500 12,500 subscription
l Agreement awaiting
Nuevo Quilmana Poultry Producers Association 12,500 12,500 subscription
Agreement awaiting
Tablada Parish Mothers Club N%5 - VMT 12,500 12,500 subscription

- .

Asociacion Atocongo 43



Sustainability Report 2006

“Improving the management of social pro-
grammes in Villa El Salvador” project

This programme is being implemented
through a strategic alliance between Aso-
ciacion Atocongo, Japan Fund Develop-
ment, the World Bank, the NGO Prisma and
the Municipality of Lima within its ‘Constru-
yamas' programme.

Its aim is to raise awareness and provide
training, through participatory workshops
in health and nutrition, to the leaders of or-
ganisations respoensible for the social pro-
grammes in Villa El Salvador, the Glass of
Milk programme, for example, communal
meals programmes and others.

The results of this programme were as
follows:

» Awareness raising workshops were held in
174 local authorities, for municipal officials,
health workers and representatives of so-
cial organisations.

» 44 representatives of local councils, health
authorities and social organisations com-
pleted a ‘Training for Trainers’ course in
Management of Social Programmes, and
received certificates from the University
ESAN.

» 716 beneficiaries from Glass of Milk pro-
gramme committees received training.

» An agreement was entered into with the
Southern Lima office of the Ministry of
Health to provide facilities for meetings
and work.

?----—-
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One of the principal aims of the “Adopt your neighbourhood” programme

is to encourage social inclusion for our young people in the Southern

cone of Lima, giving them opportunities for developing their own projects

to the benefit of the community.

“Adopt your Neighbourhood” programme

This programme was also implemented
through an alliance bhetween Asaciacion
Atocongo, Japan Fund Development, the
World Bank, the NGO Grupo GEA and the
Municipality of Lima as part of its ‘Constru-
yamos' programme.

The "Adopt your Neighbourhood” pro-
gramme encouraged the social inclusion
of voung people between 14 and 24 in
the Southern Cone of Lima, offering them
opportunities to develop their own projects
to benefit the surroundings, health and life
in their neighbourhoods, which created so-
cial maobility in their communities.

Thus 45 socio-environmental projects were
implemented by young achievers, which im-
proved their self esteem and personalities,
strengthened their leadership abilities and
involved them further in their communities
as they interacted with entities such as the
local police, local government, school direc-
tors, churches, etc. Publication of bulletins
“Voz Juvenil” and “Habla Lurin”.

INITIATIVES IMPLEMENTED

78%

-

VMT, 35

- -
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WINNERS OF THE SOCIAL PROJECTS COMPETITION

Project

Implementation of the Asociacidén de

Discapacitados José Galvez rehabilitation centre

District

Villa Maria del Triunfo

Collection of PET 1 plastic containers and
construction of a community centrel

Villa Maria del Triunfo

Refurbishment of a family
recreation centre

Villa Maria del Triunfo

Fabrication of basic housing
modules from pallets

Villa Maria del Triunfo

“BUILDING GOODWILL” CORPORATE
VOLUNTARY WORK PROGRAMME

In mid June 2006 we created a progra-
mme entitled “Building Goodwill” as a
manner of encouraging corporate volun-
tary work among the collaborators of Ce-
mentos Lima S.A.

Building Goodwill came into being to help
with the development of communities
adjacent to the company. One of its first

initiatives was a social projects competition:
the collaborators of Cementos Lima S.A. were
organised into groups {from 3 to 5 people in
each) and submitted projects aimed at impro-
ving the living conditions of these communi-
ties. Four of these were selected.

The programme also has the advantage
that it encourages union and solidarity
among our collaborators, as well as greater
teamwork,

- -



Making housing modules from paliets
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Since 1995 Cementos Lima S.A. has been monitoring air quality in
its plants, in accordance with the monitoring programme contained
in its Environmental Management Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE,
INDICATORS AND RESOURCE
CONSUMPTION

» Annual electrical energy consumption:
298.27 GWh (Plant, quarries, GEA Las
Palmas (water wells)} and 1. 93 GWh at
Conchan Pier

» Annual fossil fuel consumption
Diesel N°2: 183 t
Bunker: 13,261 t
Coal: 237,068t
Natural Gas: 40,25 millones NM?

ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES

Cementos Lima S.A. has 18 environmental
management tools, such as environmental
impact studies, environmental management
and update programmes, statements under
oath, etc. All of these have been obtained
through the competent authorities; the ma-
jority have already been approved and the
company is implementing an envirenmen-
tal management plan in accordance with the
commitments assumed in each instrument.

*----



, ! N° | Environmental Management Tools

1 | PAMA - Hydrocarbons Storage 11| EIS - Miguel Segundo

2 | EIS - extension to Atocongo quarries 12 EIS - Atocongo - Conchan

3 | EIS - Las Hienas concession conveyor belt

4 | EIS - Mussa 2 concession 13| EIA - Virgen de Fatima

5 EIS - thg marine environment and 14 | La Yarada statement under oath

port activities 15 | EA - Platanal (1)

6 | EIS - port aperations at Conchan Pier 16 Environmental evaluation of

7 | EIS - Cristina concession effluent treatment plant

8 | Sorpresa | statement under oath 17 | EIS - Parco silica extraction project

9 | EIS - Conchan | gquarry 1g| Statement under oath - Parco silica
10 | PAMA - industrial plant project

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL, MONITORING
PROGRAMME AND AIR QUALITY

Since 1995, Cementos Lima S.A. has monito-
red the air quality in its plants, in accordance
with the monitoring programme established
in its environmental management plan. To
carry out this programme, the company uses
sampling equipment for particles, gas anaty-
sers and meteorological towers. The environ-
mental reports are sent to the competent au-
thority, which is the Ministry of Production.

The aim is to evaluate the influence of the
plant, quarries and port operations on the air
quality of their areas of influence by compari-
san with air and noise standards included in
current Peruvian environmental legislation.

The production units have air quality monito-
ring points at: the plant and quarries at Ate-
congo, Conchan Pier and the Cristina, Las Hie-
nas, Virgen de Fatima and Las Dunas mining
concessions.

- as Em mm oam e EE a e Ew
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Atocongo plant and nearby communities

RE: :Ecnttmb;;;?;-.
%40. t

FOuz,

José Galvez (B) | Virgen de Lourdes (S}

Cristina mining concession

Cristina Sur (B} | Cristina Sur (S)

Las Hienas mining concession

Water pump (B) | Camp (S}

Conchan port operations

MC-01(B) I LC-02 (S5/)

Las Dunas mining concession

Entrance (B) | Quarrying zone {S)

Virgen de Fatima mining concession

Entrance to village (B) | Medical post (S)

{B) Upwind (S} Downwind (*) Invalidated because of electrical failure

Particles

The table summarises monthly and average
annual concentrations of suspended parti-
cles fess than ten microns (SP 10) for 2006.

As far as SP 10 over 24 Hours was concerned,
the highest concentrations were measured

Sustainability Report 2006

in the communities of Virgen de Lourdes,
adjacent to the plant, Cristina Sur downwind
and Lomao Corvina, because of the particular
conditions in the area {(desert with heavy ve-
hicle traffic, among others},

.-
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CO Average SO, Average NO, Average
' Monitoring Point 8 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours

{pg/md) {pg/m?3) {pg/m?)

B Virgen de Lourdes 1471 1 58

N Jose Galvez 1032 32 18

National Standard 10,000 365 200

I

. The production units have air quality monitoring points at: Atocongo
plant and quarries, Conchan pier, Cristina, Las Hienas, Virgen de Fatima
y Las Dunas concessions.
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Parks and gardens in the Cementos
Lima S.A. plant

>

In 2006 we monitored gaseous emissions and carried out isokinetic
sampling of particulate material in the plant’s chimneys, to find
out whether they are working properly and efficiently to produce
cement in a cleaner way.

Noise

Noise levels in dB {A) during 2006 at the in-
dustrial plant monitoring points ranged bet-
ween 44.9 dB and 79.3 dB and are less than
the maximum value for noise of 80 dB (A)
in industrial areas (S.D. N° 085-2003-PCM}.
On exception was the Virgen de Lourdes
monitoring point, at which a large number
of public service at the start of a bus route
affect the noise level.

Meteorology

Meteorological information was collected
from a station located on Cerro La Cruz (the
prevailing wind blows from the south east:
26.6%). This information shows the direc-
tion in which environmental contamination

from our plant, quarries and port operation
could travel,

EMISSIONS INTO THE ATMOSPHERE

The cement manufacturing process inclu-
des several systems for reducing particle
emissions, such as multi-cyclones, sleeve
filters, collectors, mist system dust control,
electrostatic precipitators, etc.

In 2006 we monitored gaseous emissions
and carried out isokinetic sampling of parti-
culate materials in the chimneys of our plant
in order to verify that they were working co-
rrectly and efficiently in ensuring clean pro-
duction of cement.

|



By means of 5.0. N° 003-2002-PRODUCT, the Ministry of Production approved maximum
permissible limits (MPL} for emissions from kilns, compliance with which is obligatory;

these are used as a reference and are detailed below:

MAXIMUM PERMISSIBLE LIMITS IN PERU - PARTICULATE MATERIALS

Parameter Standard
Particulate DS N° 003-2002-
materials PRODUCE

MPL

Kiln (mag/m?)
Existing 250
New 150

EMISSION CONCENTRATION LEVELS

FOR 2006

Particles

The annual emission concentration of particu-
late materials from kilns | and II, the L2 clinker
cooler, raw materials, clinker and coal mills
were within the MPL {250 mg/m?) required by
PRODUCT.

it should be mentioned that in April 20086,
the electrofilter system on kiln | was re-
placed by a sleeve filter system involving
an investment estimated at 3.69 million
dollars, which has improved particle re-

tention from 129 mg/m? to 3 mg/m?2.
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Not emitting 470 tons of CO2 each year means, from a social point

of view, that the amount of water we are no longer using could
supply 3,750 people.

PARTICULATE MATERIALS - 2006
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Integral water management

One of the basic principles of water manage-
ment is that water is a vulnerable and renewa-
ble resource which is essential to support life,
development and the environment. Effective
water management therefore requires an in-

72
kvt ¥ 3

Clinker
Cooler L2
Clinker
Cooler L1
Raw Press
Coal Mill 1

Clinker Press
Cement Mill

tegrated approach which reconciles econo-
mic and social development with protection
for natural systems.

With this principle in mind, Cementos Lima
S.A. has developed activities that have ena-

*-_
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AVERAGE MONTHLY WATER CONSUMPTION OVER

THE LAST ELEVEN YEARS

Average monthly water consumption
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bled it to improve integral water manage-
ment, these activities include:

Arranging with SEDAPAL for the correct
percentage contribution to the sewage net-
work (43%) of total water consumption to be
applied {1998).

Evaluation of the outfall flow rates for indus-
trial and domestic effluent (1998).
Implementation of production line 2 (1998),
without the use of water to clean gases.
Changes in the water mains from Las Palmas
to the Atocongo plant to prevent loss of water
from the main.

Programmed maintenance of water and
drainage services.

Implementation of water saving devices in
sanitary and domestic installations and drip
irrigation of parks and gardens.

All the above has reduced water consumption
by approximately 30%, which represents a
saving in electricity consumpticn of 588,000
KWh/year because less water is being pum-
ped. From the environmental point of view,
this represents a reduction in CO2 emissions
of 470t a year; and from a social point of view,
it means that the quantity of water saved
could be used to supply 3,750 people.
Furthermore, the important savings of energy
resulting from reduced water consumption
have produced economic benefits for the
company in excess of 2.8 millions dollars to
December 2006.

p—
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-

ificial wetlands at the pilot waste water

Cementos Lima S.A. uses environmental ma-
nagement tools approved by the competent
autharity, which include the environmental
management plan and water quality monito-
ring programmes at all its production units.

The results obtained in evaluations of the
plant and Cristina concession regarding water
consumption and domestic use indicate that,
from the point of view of physical / chemical
quality, the water is acceptable to good.

Analyses of sea water at Conchan Pier and
the lagoon formed at the Las Hienas and Las
Dunas mining concessions were compared
with classes IV and VI of the Water Act and
indicate that the port and gquarrying opera-
tions have not affected the quality of these
water bodies.

Effluent quality

Effluent from the plant is discharged intc
the SEDAPAL sewer network and that from
the Cristina concession is treated in a septic
tank that has been approved by the Ministry
of Health's Environmental Heaith Bureau (DI-
GESA).

The monthiy results of effluent monitoring at
our plant are compared against S.D. N° 003-
2002-PRODUCE: "Approval of Maximum Per-
missible Limits for Effluent from Cement Ma-
nufacture Discharged into the Public Sewers”
and the executive regulations for industrial
effluent S.D. N2 28-80-ASPL.

The monitoring programme, which includes
sampling of physical and chemical parame-
ters, uses a point on the sewer network near
the company’s Gonzalo Alarcon Barrera sta-
dium. Effluent discharged into the SEDAPAL
sewer network.

2 Class IV: Water in primary contact recreation zones {bathing and simitar). Class V1. Water containing aquatic fauna, in which commercial or sports fishing takes pla

*-——--———-
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EFFLUENT QUALITY FROMTHE PLANT DURING 2006
The principal parameters evaluated during sampling and analysis of liquid effluent from
Cementos Lima’s operations are summarised below.

Industrial
plant Maximum permissible limit
2006 Ministry of Executive
Parameter Units average Production‘" Regulations
for Industrial
Effluent.’?
Temperature °C 25.0 35,0 35,0
PH -- 7.5 6af 5.5a85
Total suspended
scolids (TSS) mg/| 88.0 100 -
Biochemical oxygen
demand (BOD) mg/l 135.8 - < 1000
Qils and grease mg/l 9.9 < 100

Source: Cementos Lima 5.A,
{1} Maximum Permissible Limits for Effluent from Cement Manufacture for Discharge into the Public Sewers, D.8. N° 003-
2002-PRODUCE

{2) Maximum permissible limit for industrial effluent discharged into the public sewers. D.S. N° 28/60 ASPL

The annual average results of the parameters ~ SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

included in the above table do not exceedthe  Cementos Lima generates industrial and do-
maximum permissible limits {MPL) for the mestic, hazardous and non-hazardous solid
cement sector, ar the industrial effluent requ-  waste in its quarrying, port and manufactu-
lations. ring activities and hydrocarbons storage.

Waste handling covers all the company’s
operating production units.
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DESCRIPTION OF WASTE HANDLING
Domestic waste

The domestic waste generated in the mess
room and offices, in hoth the old and new
plants, are stored temporarily in 1.6 m3 ca-
pacity containers or smaller containers iden-
tified by a given colour code. blue {organic
waste), green (inorganic waste} and black
{unusable waste). We thus seek to raise
awareness among our employees regarding
the segregation of waste. Collection, trans-
port and final disposal is carried out by a so-
lid waste service provider {EPS-RS), authori-
sed by DIGESA.

During 2006 the plant generated an average
of 53 t per month; 56% was from the camp
and mess room, 29% from the old plant and
15% from the new plant,

As a way of helping ocur neighbours in Nue-
va Esperanza marginal settlement we pro-
vide the services mentioned by installing a

container from which approximatety 15.3t of
domestic waste are collected and disposed
of at the Portillo Grande landfill site every
month.

Industrial waste

Industrial waste is generated by the opera-
ting units of Cementos Lima 5.A. and cons-
titute one of the company’s significant en-
vironmental aspects. Our efforts are aimed
at integral and efficient management based
on prevention and care for the environment.
These criteria are transmitted to supervisors
and workers in order to minimise, control
and temporarily store solid waste at a collec-
tion point within our installations {located in
the former Enatru area). We also have two
additional collection points: one for storing
used oils and grease and the other for dust
and construction waste from the new plant.

Industrial waste is removed by companies au-
thorised by the Environmental Health Bureau

*--
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(DIGESA) for treatment and final disposal
and/or donation to institutions or third par-
ties for use in t their own infrastructure.

In 2006 we disposed of the following indus-
trial waste: scrap metal {358.61 t}, conveyor
belting (11,78 t}, Nylon bolts {13.51 t), pallets
{177.15 t), refractory bricks (970.26 t), paper
bags {7.48 t} and used oil {142,563 1).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMMES AND
DEVELOPMENT OF ENVIRONMENT-
FRIENDLY TECHNOLOGIES

Plan for treating effluent in

artificial wetlands

During 2006, Cementos Lima continued with
its project to build an effluent treatment
plant using artificial wetlands. With this in
mind we applied to PRODUCE and the Envi-
ronmental Health Bureau for the correspon-
ding permits.

N :‘nf:‘r:“l‘lwlﬁ:kwq‘

Panoramic view of the
Cementos Lima S.A. offices

The project will be able to treat 18,000 m3 of
effluent each month and will bring important
hygiene and environmental benefits by re-
ducing discharges and creating healthy eco-
logical surroundings for the neighbouring
population. It is also expected to provide an
important economic benefit by saving water
used for irrigation and reducing the cost
of disposing of effluent through the public
Sewers.

Change of fuel — use of natural gas

As a result of this project we have started
using natural gas from the Camisea field as
fuel for our cement manufacturing process,
which has reduced gaseous emissions by
more than 30 percent, improving environ-
mental air quality and energy costs, which
can now be calculated more accurately, after
a continual period of production of at least
one hundred and eighty days. At present the
gas system for Kiln 1l is partially operative
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2
The development of environment-friendly technologies enables

us to treat 18,000 m? of effluent a month, resulting in a significant
benefit to public health and the environment and creating healthy
surroundings for neighbouring people.

*and it is expected that the connection to Kiln
1 will be operational in April 2007, Accumu-
lated investment as at the 31st of December
2006 amounted to US$ 5.45 million. The
company has applied for carbon gas emi-
ssion reduction certificates within the Kyoto
Protocol’s clean development mechanism,
as a resuit of replacing coal with natural gas,
these certificates are essential to the profita-
bility of the investment.

Reduction in emissions after replacing
electrofilters on Kiln | with sleeve filters.
The company’s management prioritised im-
provements to the retention of particles from
kiln | in 2005, this project was completed in
March 2006 and involved a total investment
of US$ 3.7 million.

The improvement consisted of replacing the
electrofilter system with “Jet Pulse” type slee-
ve filters. This work has reduced emissions of
particulate materials from kiln | from 231.74

mg/m3 (recorded in one of the electrofilter
chimneys in 2005} to 3.24 mg/m3 (recarded
annual average for 2006).

It is important to point out that the decision
to prioritise investment in particle retention
from kiln | has made a significant positive
impact on the environment, as can be seen
from the table of results, which shows the
values before the change was made.
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Atocongo - Conchan conveyor belt will improve the environmental
quality of the zone by reducing the number of heavy vehicles

on the roads and improving the urban landscape with new roads

and pavements.

Description Particles (mg/m?)
Process UNIT COND 2005 2006
Before After l_—
Kiln | mg/m® | OPER 231 74 5,06 | 1,00 B
mg/m? 231,74 3,24

Atocongo-Conchan conveyor belt

This project has been under way since May
2005. It consists of the construction and
commissioning of a tubular conveyor belt 8.2
Km long in a tunnel approximately 6.5 Km
long between the plant in the district of Villa
Maria del Triunfo and Conchan Pier in the dis-
trict of Villa El Salvador, as well as surfacing of
Lima, Del Parque and Maria Reiche Avenues,
which will benefit the adjacent communities.

The project, which we expect to complete in
the next 12 months, will improve the quality
of the environment in the area by reducing
heavy vehicle traffic and providing new road
surfaces and pavements. The environmen-
tal impact study was approved in May 2002
by the Ministry of Production. The surfacing
work and tunnels have been completed and

part of the electromechanical equipment ins-
talled. As at the 31st of December 2006, the
investment in this project amounted to US$
30 million.

PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION

OF BIODIVERSITY

Protection of the environment and biodi-
versity inspired by the principles of sus-
tainable development constitutes a key
element in Cementos Lima’s strategic pla-
nning. As a result we have created a zoo in
the plant, in which we have planted more
than 30 has. of land. We have implemen-
ted a continuous hiological monitoring
programme in the area of influence of our
operations.




' The Atocongo - Cenchan conveyor belt
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Atocongo Zoological Garden

The purpose of the zoological garden is to en-
courage the management of wild and domes-
tic fauna in captivity. It provides an adequate
habitat for conservation, domestication and
breeding animals in captivity and plays an
important role in educating employees and
visitors, by raising awareness of the wealth of
wild fauna and caring for this wealth. there is
a total of 200 animals of 25 species, including
ostriches, coaties, zorros costefios, turtles,
peacocks, deer, alpaca, etc. The garden also
has essential services such as veterinary care
and specialist persennel providing care, orna-
mentation and maintenance.

Programmed visits for the general public

As part of our community cutreach progra-
mme, we have implemented a programme of
guided tours to the zoological garden. These
visits are governed by an internal regulation:
from 9 to 11 a.m., onTuesdays and Thursdays
for the general public; and Fridays for institu-

tions. During 2006, 605 visitors from 11 insti-
tutions and 24 private individuals visited the
garden.

Parks and gardens

We have approximately 30 has. of parks and
gardens in Atocongo and around Conchan
Pier. Among other species planted are molle
costefio and huarango. We have also imple-
mented a sprinkler irrigation system on more
than 20 has., which enables us to optimise
water use.

Biological monitors

One of the commitments assumed by Cemen-
tos Lima in the environmental impact studies,
is the biological monitoring of flora and fau-
na in the zones of influence of the Atocongo
guarrying concession (area of seasonal vege-
tation) and the Las Hienas quarry concession
{an area of stagnant water).




The principal objective of these programmes
is to evaluate the natural environment in rela-
tion to the company’s activities in these areas
during the wet season (May - October) and
dry season (November — April). Among the
most frequently used indicators are the den-
sity and population diversity of plant and ani-
mal species.

On the Las Hienas concession the se coverage
of vegetation, condition of the flora, popula-
tion density and abundance of birds and fish
in the lagoon formed by underground water
from the quarry, were evaluated. According
to the Ramsar Convention classification of
wetlands, this ecosystem is a type 7 artificial
wetland system, which includes all excavatio-
ns, sand and gravel quarries and spoil heaps.

Plant species reported during 2006 include
aquatic fern, heliotrope, verdolaguilla, acacia,
palm, junco, lenteja de agua, totora , grama

dulce and grama salada (this being the most
abundant).

The evaluation of birds produced a total of 42
species belonging to 20 families, with an ave-
rage of 560 individuals per census. The most
representative bird family in the wetlands is
the heron (fam. adeidae), followed by the guli
(fam. laridae), with ducks in third place (fam.
anatidae Fish species include the Guppy {poe-
cilia reticulata), mojarra {aequidens rivalatus}
and “lisa” (mugil cephalus). Mojarrais curren-
tly the most abundant species (the population
has increased since CLSA prohibited fishing
for the species) and is the main food source
for numerous species of fish-eating birds.

During 2006 we found that at the Atocongo
quarries, the vegetation consists mainly of
low-growing grasses, which represent 48.5%
of all species. Bushes, shrubs and cacti ac-
count for 33.3%; tree shrubs 18.2% while

e = = e
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Poecilia reticulata — —

Aequidens rivulatus
Mugil cephalus

CHANGES IN THE ABUNDANCE OF FISH BETWEEN 1998 AND 2006

Las Hienas Concession
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introduced, invading or naturalised species
accounted for 21.2%. Three areas were eva-
luated and Cerro Licumo, Atocongo and La
Mora (zone I} were found to be the best pre-
served, with 51 species from 27 families re-
corded in the wet season and 33 species from
18 families in the dry season.The presence of
larger numbers of species is linked to envi-
ronmental humidity.

The results of manitoring in the dry sea-
son and wet season since Decermnber 2002
to date indicate clearly that the dominant
families in the Atocongo quarry area are
asteraceae, boraginaceae and solanaceae.

Investment in the environment

We have a logistic system for the collection
and production of information on investment
in the environment. This system includes cla-
ssification of investment by production unit
and type of investment, emissions control, air

Dec-02
Set-03
Dec-03
Dec-04
Feb-05
Aug-05
Dec-05
Aug-06
Dec-06

quality evaluation, biological controls, envi-
ronmental studies and projects, maintenan-
ce and increasing parks and gardens and the
zoological garden.

There are also special environmental invest-
ments that are individually administered be-
cause of the magnitude of the investment, ai-
med at improving environmental, social and
economic performance to the benefit of the
company, the employees and the community
in general.

During 2006 the company invested approxi-
mately $3.56 million, distributed among its
production units and the natural gas fuel
project. These investments do not include the
“Atocongo - Conchan Conveyor Belt” project
These investments relate to the production of
studies and environmental monitoring, such
as air quality, atmospheric emissions, water
guality, biological monitoring and other in-

*-----
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ZONE |: consists of Licurno, Atocongo and La Mora hills. This is the zone that is ieast infiuenced by the factors mentioned above.
This zone is considered the best preserved.

ZONE I consists of Cerro El Sol v La Luna, Quebrada Blanca and Polvorin, This zone receives the heaviest direct influence from
the plant and adjacent quarries.

ZONE 1: includes Cerro Zorritos, the areas adjacent 10 the community of Yanavilla, and the area surrounding “Villa Maria™ cermeatery
near o Virgen de Lourdes, This area has the highest impact from human settlement.

vestments arising from commitments acqui-
red through the company’s environmental
management tools in the different quarrying
concessions (principally Las Hienas, Cristina,
Las Dunas, Virgen de Fatima, Conchan Pier
and the plant).

Investment in the management of natural
resources amounted to US$316 881 in main-
tenance and increasing the area of parks and
gardens, and US$ 40 060 in administration
and maintenance of the zoological garden at
Atocongo.

Accumulated investment from 1996 to 2006
amounts to more than $ 47.1 million.The main
investment took place in Atocongo plant and
quarries (more than $ 14.7 million}, the en-
vironmental impact study for Conchan Pier
{more than $2.4 million) and, of the special
projects, the Atocongo - Conchan ecological
conveyor belt, which accounted for approxi-
mately $30.0 million.
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Plans, challenges
and future
commitments

Building excellence with
commitment

) EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES
“Asociacion Atocongo is developing
programmes to improve the quality of
education, one of them being ‘Mathe-
matics for All', for first, fifth and sixth
grade students. This programme has

been of great benefit to us because it
has trained teachers and given us ma-
terials that low-income parents could
not have bought themselves.”

Interviewee: Blanca Neyra

Position: Directora de la LE. N° 6014
Programme: Mathematics for All
District: Villa Maria del Triunfo

Sustainability Report 2006
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Alliances and participation

Our Partners

* Grass-roots organisations participating
in our programmes and projects

* Coliaborators of Cementos Lima
P Programa de voluntariado

“Construyendo Voluntades”

» Civil organisations

» UNDP Small Grants Programme - SGP

» Ayuda en Accidon Foundation

» Tierra de Nifos

» Grupo de Emprendedores Ambietales
(GEA)

» Instituto Apoyo

» Servicios Educativos y Propuesta Social
{SUMBI)

» Asociacién Promotora de Educacidn Inicial
Caritas Graciosas

» Asociacién Escuela Declara

» Asociacidn Benéfica PRISMA

» Instituto Pedagdgico Yachay Wasi

» Centro de EducacionTécnica Productiva
“Don Bosco”

» Seminario Diocesano Don Bosco - CPR
Guayabo - Pachacamac

» ATrabajar Urbano job creation programme

» Ministry of Education - UGEL N2 1

* Municipality of Lima

» Municipality of Villa Maria del Triunfo.
» Municipality of Villa El Salvador.

» Municipality of San Juan de Miraflores.
» Municipality of Lurin.

* Municipality of Pachacamac.

» Asociacion Deportiva FUTSAL.

* Down Hill - Peru

*» Partners for Democratic Change

» Red E América

» Peru 2021

» Red de Responsabilidad Social

» Pacto Global {Grupo NNUU}

Platform for Participation

* Round table for the fight against poverty
- Southern Cone

» Association of Municipalities Southern
Lima

» Southern Lima Integral Development Plan

» Citizens Safety Committee of Villa Maria
delTriunfo

» Round table “Ciudad Productiva”- Villa El
Salvador
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(FREE TRANSLATION)

FILE N°
82-3911

VAL-069-07

July 4, 2007

Messrs.

COMISION NACIONAL SUPERVISORA DE EMPRESAS Y VALORES
CONASEV

Lima

Attention: Public Registry of Securities and
Intermediaries

Dear sirs,

As defined under Article 3° of Resolucion CONASEV N°
630-97-EF/94.10, we inform you that none of our ADR
holders has 1% share or more on the capital stock of
the Company as of June 30, 2007.

Truly yours,

Alvaro Morales Puppo
Finance Manager (CFO)
Stock Exchange Representative

c.C.: Securities and Exchange Commission - SEC (USA)
GG
VAL

FILE: TRAADRS2

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-8045 - FAX 470-8948
REG. MERC, - ASIENTC 1 FS, 397 TOMO 283
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(FREE TRANSLATION)

FILE N°
82-3911

VAL-070-07

July 4, 2007

Messrs.

COMISION NACIONAL SUPERVISORA DE EMPRESAS Y VALCORES
CONASEV

Lima

Attention: Public Registry of Securities and
Intermediaries

Dear sirs,

As defined under Articles 7° and 10° of Resoclucion CONASEV
N° 358-93-EF/94.10.0, we are attaching our ADR’s quarterly
reports received from our depositary bank, THE BANK OF NEW
YORK, as of June 30, 2007.

Truly yours,

Alvarc Morales Puppo
Finance Manager (CFO)
Stock Exchange Representative

c.c.: Securities and Exchange Commission - SEC (USA)
GG
VAL

FILE: TRAADRS

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONOQ 265-9045 - FAX 470-8046
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 397 TOMO 283
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ADR REPORT: CEMENTOS LIMA S.A. - LEVEL I
01/04/2007
30/06/2007

NUMBER OF ADRs ISSUED: 0

NUMBER OF ADRs CANCELLED: 0

NUMBER COF ADRs OQUTSTANDING: 14,434

# OF REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS: 1

ADR PRICE: 23.68

ADR/PRICE INDEX: 0.000

ADR/ORDINARY RATIO 1: 1

FILE: TRA-ADRS1

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU

TELEFONO 285-9045 - FAX 470-8046
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 397 TOMO 293
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ADR REPCORT: CEMENTQS LIMA S.A, — 1442
01/04/2007
30/06/2007
NUMBER CF ADRs ISSUED: 0
NUMBER CF ADRs CANCELLED: 0
NUMBER OF ADRs OQUTSTANDING: 0
# OF REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS: 1
ADR PRICE: 23.68
ADR/PRICE INDEX: 0.000
ADR/ORDINARY RATIOQ : 1: 1

FILE: TRA-ADRS1

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 18889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-9045 - FAX 470-8046
REG. MERC. - ASIENTC 1 FS. 397 TOMO 293
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(FREE TRANSLATION)
FILE NO.
82-3911

GF.009%6.07
Lima, July 12, 2007

Messrs.

COMISION NACIONAL SUPERVISQORA
DE EMPRESAS Y VALORES
CONASEV

Lima

Attention: Public Registry of Securities and
Intermediaries

Ref.: Important Events

Dear sirs,

As defined under Article 28 of the Securities Market Law
and Resolucidén CONASEV N° 107-2002-EF/94.10, we inform you
of the following important event:

Notice of the Board of Directors’ Meeting to be held on
Wednesday, July 18, 2007 at our offices 1located at Av.
Carlos Villaran 508, Suite 301, Santa Catalina, La
Victoria, in order to deal with the following matters:

e Approval of interim unaudited Financial Statements as
of June 30, 2007

¢ Application of partial earnings against the net
distributable income cocrrespending to the Fiscal Year
2007.

Regarding this distribution of profits, it will be proposed
that CEMENTOS LIMA S.A. pays a dividend for a total amount
of US$S 9/590,249.19 against the 2007 partial earnings.

Dividend per Common Share Uss 0.23
Dividend per Investment Share US$ 0.023

Truly yours,

Alvaro Morales Puppo

Stock Exchange Representative
Finance Manager (CFQ)

c.C.: Securities and Exchange Commission - SEC (USA)
Members of the Board

File: TRACONY

;

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-9045 - FAX 470-8946
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 397 TOMO 293
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(FREE TRANSLATION)
FILE N°
82-3911

GF.0087.07
Lima, July 18, 2007

Messrs.

COMISION NACIONAL SUPERVISORA
DE EMPRESAS Y VALORES
CONASEV

Lima

Attention: Public Registry of Securities and Intermediaries

Ref.: Important Events

Dear sirs,

As defined under Article 28 of the Securities Law and
Resolucién CONASEV N° 107-2002-EF/94.10, we inform you as
“Important Event” about the resolution adopted by the Board
of Directors’ Meeting held on July 18, 2007:

Appointment of Outside Auditors

The Board adopted the resolution of appointing DONGO-SORIA
GAVEGLIO & ASOCIADOS SOCIEDAD CIVIL {member of
PRICEWATERHOUSE COQPERS) as Outside Auditors for auditing
our Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 2007.

The Financial Statements for the Fiscal Years 2002 to 2006
were audited by MEDINA, SALDIVAR, PAREDES & ASOCIADOS
SOCIEDAD CIVIL (member of ERNST & YOUNG)

Truly yours,

Alvaro Morales Puppo
Finance Manager (CFO)

cC.C.: Securities and Exchange Commission - SEC (USA)
GG
VAL

FILE: TRACONT

'

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1888 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-9045 - FAX 470-8946
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 387 TOMO 293
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(FREE TRANSLATION)

FILE N°
82-3911
Wednesday, July 18, 2007
Messrs.,
CONASEV
Lima

IMPORTANT EVENT: Communication of Resclutions adopted at
the Shareholders’ Meetings, Board of Directors’ Meetings
and Others

As defined under Regulations of Important Events, Reserved
Information and Other Communications approved by Resolucidn
CONASEV N° 107-2002-EF/94.10, we inform vyou of the
following:

Juridical Person: CEMENTCS LIMA S.A.
Type of Meeting: Board of Directors
Date: July 18, 2007

Comments: PARTIAL EARNINGS AGAINST THE NET DISTRIBUTABLE
INCOME CORRESPONDING TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2007
It was dealed with the following matters:
- Distribution or Application of Earnings
- Appeointment of DONGO, SORIA, GAVEGLIO Y ASOCIADOS
SOCIEDAD CIVIL (member of PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS)
toe audit the Financial Statements for the Fiscal
Year 2007.
- Approvement o©f the Unaudited Financial Statements
as of June 30, 2007

INFORMATION DATA CONCERNING DE DISTRIBUTION OR APPLICATION
OF EARNINGS

Concept: Obtained Earnings
Fiscal Year: 2007
Currency: Uss

Total Amount: 9'590,249.19

Type of Stock: Common Shares

Number: 367926,629
Modality: cash dividend
Currency: uss

Amount : 0.23 per share

% New Shares: 0

Type of Stock: Investment Shares

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF. 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-9045 - FAX 470-8848
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 397 TOMO 293
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Number: 477701, 0066
Modality: cash dividend
Currency: Us$

Amount: 0.0230

% New Shares: 0

INFORMATION DATA CONCERNING THE RECORD AND PAYMENT DATES
FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OR APPLICATION OF EARNINGS

Obtained earnings - Fiscal Year 2007 - USS$
Date of Agreement: July 18, 2007

Type of Stock: Common Shares
Record Date: August 06, 2007
Payment Date: August 21, 2007

Type of Stock: Investment Shares
Record Date: Rugust 06, 2007
Payment Date: August 21, 2007

Observations:

Place of payment: Av. Carlos Villaran 508, Suite 301, Santa
Catalina, La Victoria

To Shareholders incorpeorated to the book entry system, the
dividend will be paid through CAVALI

Truly yours,

Alvaro Morales Puppo

Finance Manager (CFO)

Stock Exchange Representative

FILE: TEACCNS

AV. CARLOS VILLARAN 508, OF, 301, SANTA CATALINA, LA VICTORIA - LIMA 13 - CASILLA 1889 - LIMA 100 - PERU
TELEFONO 265-0046 - FAX 470-8948
REG. MERC. - ASIENTO 1 FS. 387 TOMO 293
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Operating Income

Het Sales (oparating income)

QOther Qperaung Income

Gross Revenue

Cost of salas (eperating)

Oiher Operating Costs

Total Operating Costs

Gross margin

Selling Expenses

Administralive expenses

Gain or loss in sales of assets

Cther incoms

Qther expenses

Qperating Incomes

Financial lncome

Financial Expansas

Share in net earnings of relaled pariies by Equity Method
Gain or loss in dorivalives

Incomo befors workers’ profil sharing and Income tax
Workars 'profit sharing

Imeome 1ax

Income {Loss) Net of Contlnuous Operations
Income (Luss) Net of Discontinued Operations
Net income {loss} of the period

Nst Income (loss) of the period

Basic Earnings (Losses) per common share
Basic Earnings {Losses) per invesimant share
Diluted aarnings {lossas) per common share
Chiuted Barmings (losses) per investment share

Income (Loss) Net of Continuous Operations
Basic Earnings (Lossas) par commen shars
Basic Earnings (Losses) per invasimant share
Oiluted earnings (losses) per comman share
Diluted earnings {losses) par investmanl sharg

CEMENTOS LIMA S.A,
Profit and Loss Statements
For the periods ended March 31, 2007 and 2006
In Thousands of New Soles

For the specifle

For the spscific

Forthe

For the

Notes quarter from Guarter from cummulative period cummulative paried

January 16t to June January 15t to June from January 1stto from January 1stito
0, 2007 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 Juns 30, 2006

210,415 180,475 398,385 364,287
1.875 2,128 3,533 3,969

18 212,290 182,603 401,918 168,256
(103.933) {110,680) (197.542) (214,108}
{1,718) (966) {3.525) {2.249)
19 {105,649) {111,646} {201,067} (216,357)
106,641 70,957 200,851 151,899
21 (6.444) {6,364) {12,221) (12,523)
20 {25,448) (22,282) (48,817) {44,975)
Q 0 o 0
1,897 459 2,583 1,789
(591} {790) (964) {3.177)
76,057 41,990 141,432 93,013

23 669 5,044 1,524 7.744
24 (2,672) {2,111} {4,135) (3.788)
8.a 3.541 1,512 4,407 3,024
0 0 0 "]

77,695 46,435 143,228 99,993
15 {7,462) (4,593) {14,098) (9.954)
15 (20,148) {12,401) (38,086) (26.875)
49,985 29,441 91,064 63,164
0 0 0 0

49,985 29,441 91,064 653,164

27 1.199 0.708 2.184 1.515
27 0.120 0.071 G.218 0,152
27 1.168 0.706 2.184 1.515
27 ©.120 0.071 0.218 0.152
1.199 0.708 2.184 1.515
0.120 0.071 0.218 0.;!52

1.189 0.706 2.184 1.515
0.120 0.071 0.218 0.152

\
o
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Statements of Cash Flow
For the periods ended as of March 31, 2007 and 2006
In Thousands of New Soles

From January 1st From January 1st

Notes ) ne 30, 2007 to June 30, 2006

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collections (entries) from:

Sales of goods or services and operating income 442874 429,372

Fees and commissions v} 0

Interests and returns {not included in Investing activities) ] 0

Dividends (not included in investing activities) 0 [}

Royaltles 0 o

Other collections in cash related to this aclivity 19,136 13,900

Less payments (disbursements) to:

Suppliers of goods and services {263,061) (199,572}
Employee wagas, salaries and severance indemaities {36,371) {34,539)
Taxes (65,191) (84,962)
Interas!s and returns {not included in financing activities) 0 0

Royalties 0 0

Other payments in cash related 1o this activity 0 0

Increase (Decrease) of cash and cash squivalents provided by operating activities 97,187 144 199

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Collections {entries) from:

Loans 1o related paries o] 0
Sale of Retated Parlies and other Operating Segments 0 0
Sale of Financial Investrments 0 0
Sale ¢f Real $tata Invastments 0 0
Sale of fixed assels 3} 0
Sale of intangible assets 0 1]
Interests and returns 0 ¢
Dividends 1] [}
Other collections in cash related to this activily 1} 0
Loss payments (disbursements) to:

0 0

Loans to related parties

Purchase or Related Parties and other Qperating Segments 8 {213,848) {41,434)
Purchase of Financial Investments 0 0
Purchase of Real State Investmeants 0 0
Purchase of Fixed Assets 9 (8,575) (4,156)
Disbursements for work in prograss of fixed assets 9 {31,564} (30,640}
Purchase and development of intangible assels 10 (6986) {4,156)
Other payments in cash related to this activity 2h (14,010) {25,217)
Increase {Decrease) of cash and cash squivalents used in Investing activities {266,693} {105,603)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Collections {entries} from:
increase in Bank Overdarafts 124,203 0
Issuance and acceptation of Financial Liabliitias 180,000 21,753
Issuance of Shares or Paid-In Capital 0 0
Sale of Treasury Shares 0 ]
Other collections in cash related to this activity 0 0
Less payments (disbursements) to:
Redemption or payment or Bank Qverdraits 0 4]
Payment or redemption of debentures (63,940) {5.020)
Repurchase of Yreasury Shares 0 0
interests anc returns 0 0
Dividends paid (51,720) {37.326)
Other payments in cash relaled to this activity 4 Q
Increase (Decraase) of cash and cash equlvalents provided by financing activities 168,543 {20,593)
Net Increase (Decroase) of cash and cash equlvatents {963) 15,003
Cash and cash equivalenis Balance at ihe beginning of period 27,517 31,006
Effect of exchange differences of Cash and Cash Eguivalents 0 ¢
26,554 49,009

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

e %

JUAN PABLO COCK CABTR
CONTALOA OENERAL ©
CPO. Matriculs 8912




Statements of Cash Flow
For the periods ended as of March 31, 2007 and 2006
In Thousands of New Soles

From January 1st From January 13t

Notes 0 june 30, 2007 to June 30, 2006

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income {loss) af the pericd 91,064 63,164

Plus :

Adjustments to net income (loss) of the period

Estimation ¢f Doubtful Debts 0 0

Impairment of Inventory 0 0

Changes in value of Biological Assels 0 0

Depreciation and impairment loss of the period 9 33,591 47,738

Amortization of Intangible Assets 10 917 1,283

Amontization of other assets 2.h 13.825 12,798

Provisions 0 [

Loss in sale of financial investments o} o]

Loss in sala of Derivatives 4} 0

Loss in sale of real state investments 0 0

Loss in sale of ixed assels ' 9 65 1,477

Loss in sale of intangible assets 0 ]

Financial Expenses 0 3]

Share in net earnings of retatad parties, net of dividends received in cash 1} 0 !
Deferred workers' profit sharing and income tax 0 0

Dtners 4] Q !
Less: '
Adjustmants to net income {loss} of the period '
Changes in valug of Blological Assels 0 0

Gain in sale of financial investmenis a 4] !
Gain in Sale of Derlvatives 4] 0 |
Gain in sale of real slate investments 0 4] \
Gain in sale of fixed assets 0 0

Gain in sale of intangible assets 0 0 '
Financial Income 0 0 .
Share in net eamings of related parties, net of dividends received in cash (4,407} {3,024) .
Deferred workers® prafit sharing and Income tax {3.561) {3.742}

Others {20} o) \
DEBITS AND CREDITS FOR NET CHANGES IN ASSETS AND L1ABILITIES

(Increase)} Decreasa of trade accounts receivable (22.877) 13,304

(Increase) Dacrease of accounts receivable from related parties 3,339 2,151

(Increase) Decrease of other accounts receivable 4,500 (282)

{Increase) Decrease of inventorias {15,015} 20,885

{Increase) Decrease of Biglogical Assels 0 0

(Increase) Decrease of Non-current Available-for-sale Assets i} [}

(Increase) Decrease of Prepaid Expenses {2,885} 4,474

(tncraase) Decrease of Other Assels 0 ¢)

Increase (Decrease) of Trade accounts payable (5,893) {13,598)
increase{Decrease) of accounts payable to affiliates (2,418) (3,138)

Increase (Decrease) of Current workers’ profit sharing and income tax 2,345 (1,289)

Increase (Decrease) of Other accounts payable ‘ 4,587 1,806

Increase (Decrease) of provisions 0 0

Increase {Decrease) of available-for-sale llabilities 0 0

Collections of:

Interest and Returns (nat included in Investing Activities) 8] o

Dividends (not included in Investing Activilies) 0 1]

Exchange Difference 0 ¢]

Paymentes for:

Income tax and workers profil sharing 0 0

Interest and Returns {not included in Financing Aclivities) 0 0

Provisions 0 0

Exchange Difference 0 0

Increase (Decrease) of cash and cash equivalents provided from operating activities 97,187 144,199

ca‘m;&é ¥S-LIMA S A.
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JUAN PABLO COCK CAST ‘
’ CONTADOR GENERAL--
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